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ON Semiconductor
(Nasdaq: ONNN) is a global supplier of highperformance broadband and power management integrated
circuits and standard semiconductors used in numerous
advanced devices ranging from high-speed fiber optic networking equipment to the precise power management functions
found in today’s advanced portable electronics. For more
information visit ON Semiconductor’s Web site
at http://www.onsemi.com.

GLOBAL PRESENCE
Aylesbury, UNITED KINGDOM

Aizu, JAPAN

Grenoble, FRANCE

Tokyo, JAPAN

Toulouse, FRANCE

Hong Kong, CHINA

East Greenwich, RI, USA

Leshan, CHINA

Phoenix/Chandler, AZ, USA

Carmona, PHILIPPINES

San Jose/Irvine, CA, USA

Seremban, MALAYSIA

Guadalajara, MEXICO
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BROADBAND AND POWER MANAGEMENT GROWTH

16%

26%

58%

■

Broadband and Advanced Logic revenues up 50% over 1999

■

Power Management and Standard Analog revenues up 62% over 1999

■

Integrated Circuit revenues increased to 51% of total product
revenues versus 44% in 1999

2000 PRODUCT REVENUES
■

R&D investment up 86% over 1999, primarily focused on Broadband
and Power Management

13%
Broadband and Advanced Logic

20%
Power Management and Standard Analog

67%

Standard Semiconductors

1999 PRODUCT REVENUES

2000 AT A GLANCE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

$531

In millions except per share data

$539
$491

$373

$401

$422

$428

Q1/99(2) Q2/99(2) Q3/99(2) Q4/99

$451

Q1/00

Q2/00

Q3/00

Q4/00

2000

Product Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$2,012

Net Income (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$ 118

Net Income Available to
Common Stock (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$ 109

Diluted Earnings Per Share (1) . . . . . .

$ 0.66

Total Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$2,023

Stockholders’ Equity . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$ 338

(1) Excludes amortization of goodwill and other intangibles,
write-off of acquired in-process research and develop-

PRODUCT REVENUES (in millions)

ment, restructuring charges and extraordinary loss on
debt prepayment (per table on page 12)
(2) Pro Forma 1999 Revenues—Q1-Q3
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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS
P E RVA S I V E C O N N E C T I V I T Y

$650 million in its first full year of operations; Europe, Middle

We have terrific employees around the world. They

Take a breath.

have the skills, experience, potential and passion to differenti-

East and Africa exceeding $400 million; and the Americas

In the amount of time it took you to do that, ON

ate us from the competition and help us exceed customer

exceeding $900 million. The strong industry growth in the first

expectations.

half of 2000 gave us good momentum. In the second half, we

Semiconductor produced 1,600 chips; 12,000 in the time it

have seen inventory adjustments in our major customers and

To ensure continued growth and our leadership in

took to tie your shoes this morning; 2,800,000 in an hour; 25
billion in the year 2000. We produce them in 16,000 product

the delivery of high-performance silicon, we committed to a

channels that have slowed this growth. Looking forward, 2001

types—more than 400 new products this year alone. We are in

threefold increase in research and development. In the future,

is shaping up to be a challenging year.

phones, routers, switches, high-speed modems, pagers, DVD

we expect to spend 5% to 6% of our sales revenue on R&D.

players, set top boxes, home security systems, photocopiers,

This commitment provides our customers with solid proof that

acquisition. In April of 2000, we acquired Cherry Semiconductor

scanners, smart cards, VCRs, appliances, entertainment systems,

we’re not going to rest on our laurels. We will earn their busi-

as a complementary addition to our analog portfolio. This

fuel injection systems, automatic door locks and windows, and

ness every day by providing high-performance semiconductors

acquisition gives us needed strength in design and application

too many other places to list here. We are fueled by the limit-

that set the industry standard.

resources as well as technology and products for automotive

organizations such as RosettaNet will keep us at the forefront

and computing power management. The acquisition is

of this paradigm.

We have unique strengths in high-speed data man-

less imagination of our employees, our business partners and
our customers. And we have only just begun.
We have just one full year under our belt, but we

Our growth has been both internal and through

There is much more, as you will see in this, our

fully integrated.

agement for broadband, power management and micropackag-

We completed our 1998 and 1999 manufacturing

ing. We intend to take advantage of these strengths, lead in

first Annual Report. We are off to a solid start, and we see no
end to this beginning.

are not a start-up. We are faster than that; we have size and

these growth markets, and at the same time continue to invest

restructuring programs which yielded $160 million in savings

scale, we have global reach, and our customers populate the

in what we believe is the broadest portfolio of building block

in 2000. Our costs and gross margins continue to improve

Fortune 500 list. Customers like Cisco, Nortel, Lucent, Motorola,

analog, logic and discrete products in the industry.

as we leverage our size and scale, along with the unique effi-

pervasive connectivity is exponential and ubiquitous. It con-

ciency of our low cost regional manufacturing strategy.

nects our home to our cars to our offices, and is driving a

In broadband alone, sales grew 50% to exceed

IBM, Nokia, Intel, SONY and Philips to name a few. We couple

The growth of the Internet and the associated

speed with leading edge technology, manufacturing prowess

$310 million in 2000. To fuel this growth, our intentions are to

Our nine global manufacturing locations continue to perform

convergence in features and applications from things like

and world class service.

continue to expand our recently announced design center in

well. The 25 billion chips mentioned earlier represents a 33%

computers to appliances. This push is driving demand for

the Silicon Valley and a state-of-the-art manufacturing plant in

increase over 1999.

electronics and semiconductors.

We are committed to the guiding principles of

We also established ourselves as a leader in semi-

Enabling this growth will take capacity—band-

service, growth, cost and speed. And we insist on the relent-

Phoenix. Our plan is to expand our portfolio of application

less pursuit of quality. It shows. Our customers tell us we are

specific standard parts (ASSPs) for customers in the network-

conductor e-business through our involvement in the RosettaNet

width for higher speed, broadband telecommunications and

different from our competitors—that they use us as a bench-

ing-gear industry and expand our leadership in the delivery

organization—a consortium of major information technology,

portable efficient power—longer battery life, more efficient

mark for “Best in Class.” Fact is, we won over 15 supplier

of high-performance semiconductors that are critical to broad-

electronic components and semiconductor manufacturing

power consumption.

awards this year. DaimlerChrysler honored us with its Gold

band applications.

companies working to create and implement industry-wide
e-business process standards. We played a significant role in

We increased our strength in the analog power-

Award for our product quality and the speed of delivery that

Right down our alley.

we provide through our world-class manufacturing facilities in

management market as well, where our sales grew 62% to

the adaptation of much-needed standards that enable electronic

Seremban, Malaysia; Guadalajara, Mexico; and China. Celestica

exceed $530 million. To expand our strength in this high-

engineers to obtain design information quickly from anywhere

and Dovatron recognized our customer-focused efforts with

growth market, we have established a design center in

in the world through an Internet connection. In fact, we were

their prestigious “Supplier of the Year” awards. We won the

Grenoble, France and introduced a series of analog power-

one of the first semiconductor companies to transfer critical

Steve Hanson

Curtis J. Crawford

Year 2000 “Best Sales & Customer Service Support” for South

management solutions that enable smaller, more efficient

design specs using open-standard protocols over an Internet

CEO and President

Chairman of the Board

East Asia from Arrow, and the list goes on. These awards

portable electronic devices.

connection when we conducted a successful data transmission
with Lucent Technologies. We consider the Internet an impor-

Year over year, we have grown our overall product

didn’t happen by chance. They are a reflection of an allencompassing culture that couples a passion for this business

revenue by 24% while improving our operating income and cash

tant component of our customer-focused approach as we

with a talent for meeting customer needs.

position. The growth was global, with Asia Pacific exceeding

continue into the new millennium, and our involvement with

1998 & 1999
Manufacturing

IC Revenue

QS9000 &

400

Restructure

Launch of

ISO9001

Customer

Yields

Primarion

Cherry

Company

Certification

Visits

$160 Million

Investment

Acquisition

19 9 9

2000

100% Customer

exceeds 50% of

Initial Public

Conversion

Total Revenue

Siliconix

Offering

Completed

for 1st time

Alliance

422 New

Opened 11th

Broadband

Manufacturing

Products

Announced 3X

Design Center in

Development

Cost Initiatives

Introduced in

R&D Initiative

Grenoble, France

Center Opened

Completed

2000

2000

THIRD/FOURTH QUARTER

FIRST QUARTER

SECOND QUARTER

THIRD QUARTER

FOURTH QUARTER

August - December

January - March

April - June

July - September

October - December

“Take a breath. In the amount of time it took you to do that, ON Semiconductor
produced 1,600 chips; 12,000 in the time it took to tie your shoes this morning; 2,800,000 in an hour; 25 billion in the year 2000.”

ON SEMICONDUCTOR—

power management (amplifiers, voltage regulators, interfaces,

EXCELLENCE BY DESIGN

controllers and comparators); and standard semiconductors.

ON Semiconductor designs and manufactures

ON Semiconductor’s international design centers
provide the innovation that has enabled the company to intro-

W I R E L E S S C O M M U N I C AT I O N A P P L I C AT I O N S :

duce more than 400 new products in the past year. Many of

In little more than a year, ON Semiconductor com-

Portable electronic devices, cellular phones, pagers, satellite receivers.

products critical to the functioning of today’s digital world.

menced business as an independent company, conducted

these devices are solid revenue generators with significant

Semiconductors, the small silicon-based devices that enable

a successful initial public offering and acquired Cherry

product life cycles. ON Semiconductor owns more than 740

the digital revolution, control the flow of electricity in the equip-

Semiconductor. ON Semiconductor is now positioned as

U.S. and foreign patents, 57 trademarks and intellectual property

ON SEMICONDUCTOR—A LEADER

ment that makes our world easier to manage and more enjoy-

one of the top two suppliers of power management devices

rights in as many as 39 semiconductor fabrication processes.

IN POWER MANAGEMENT

able to live in.

and a global leader in broadband solutions.

The principal end-user markets for ON

ON Semiconductor’s products are the great enablers

ON Semiconductor continues to prove itself as a

The Venture Development Corporation* estimates

of connectivity, convergence, capacity and portability that char-

that the global power-management market will grow at a

Semiconductor products are networking and computing,

fast mover in the industry. The company generates 51% of its

acterize our highly mobile, information dependent society. The

compounded annual rate of 27% to $10 billion in 2003. The

wireless communications, consumer, automotive and industrial

revenue from high-margin, high-profit Integrated Circuits (ICs),

freedom of wireless communications and the instantaneous

demand for smaller, more efficient portable electronic devices

electronics. Our products can be found in routers, switches and

an increase of seven percentage points in 2000 alone.

access to information through the Internet are but two examples

such as cell phones, Personal Digital Assistants (PDA), and

of the capabilities that semiconductors bring to our world.

smart appliances drive this growth trend.

other advanced networking equipment, computers, servers,

The company is committed to tripling its invest-

cellular telephones, portable electronics, industrial automation

ment in research and development, or 5% to 6% of annual

and control systems and many other electronic devices.

sales revenue, over the next three years.

ON Semiconductor designs and manufactures
voltage-supervisory, battery-management, Radio-Frequency
(RF) amplifier control, Input/Output (I/O) protection and smart

The company boasts three main product lines: broadband (application specific products, communication integrated
circuits, clock and data distribution, translators and drivers);

card interface ICs that meet numerous requirements for portable

Power Management
and Broadband

POWER CONVERSION

electronics and cellular communications. Do you have a cell

• Charger/Wall Adapter
• DC/DC Car Charger

Base Business

phone? If you do, it is more than likely you also own
several of ON Semiconductor’s industry-leading
products that ensure precise distribution of power
across the device. The company is a major supplier of products to most major cellular phone
RF/IF
• Transmitter
• Receiver
• Synthesizer

BATTERY MANAGEMENT
• Protection/Charger Control
• Li Ion Battery
• NiMH/NiCd Battery

N E T W O R K I N G & C O M P U T I N G A P P L I C AT I O N S :
Routers, networking, cable and other high-speed modems, set-top boxes,
laser printers, scanners, Ethernet cards, disk drives.

POWER MANAGEMENT

1999

2000

2001E

1999

2000

2001E

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

THE INNOVATION ENGINE

SPENDING

(number of new products)

• Voltage Conversion
• Voltage Supervisory

PHYSICAL INTERFACE
• Microphone
• Ringer
• Vibrator
• Backlight/Display

• Charger Input
• Smart Card
• SIM Card (GSM)
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“As one of the pioneers of the world’s fastest logic silicon…
we still lead the market three decades later.”
A U T O M O T I V E E L E C T R O N I C A P P L I C AT I O N S :
GPS and navigational tools, air bag controls, anti-lock braking systems.

manufacturers. Every time you hit the send button on your

BROADBAND—WORLD’S

phone, ON Semiconductor products help turn your wireless

FASTEST LOGIC SILICON

Already positioned as a global leader in this market,

networking equipment must be able to do significantly more

ON Semiconductor designs, develops and supplies clock

in less space and at lower power while maintaining high-

or surf the Internet without using ON Semiconductor’s prod-

management, high-performance digital and communications

performance specifications.

introduce power-management ICs that enable longer battery

ucts. You can find the company’s devices in your computer,

ICs for the high-growth broadband communications markets.

life for smaller, more efficient portable electronic devices. The

the high-speed modem, the router at your service provider’s

Applications in these markets include fiber-optic modules,

creating high-performance semicon-

company produces the devices that extend the life of your

central office and in the advanced switches that are the back-

communication and networking switches, high-end routers,

ductors that are critical in powering

phone’s battery, enabling you to carry your phone over increas-

bone of the Internet.

high-performance work stations, highly dense memory modules,

broadband equipment that supports

It is almost impossible to send an email message

communications into a reality.
ON Semiconductor continues to develop and

Venture Development Corporation estimates the

ing periods of time. In the not-so-distant future, advances in

storage-area networks and precision measurement test systems.
ON Semiconductor provides broadband semicon-

ON Semiconductor is

1999
1995

the global networking infrastructure.
As the number of users increase the

1992

battery composition and power-management semiconductor

broadband IC market will grow 28% at a compounded annual

design will enable you to use your phone for up to a year

rate from $1.3 billion in 1999 to $3.5 billion in 2003. As

ductor technology that has evolved into an essential component

load on the Internet infrastructure, ON Semiconductor will be

before recharging.

one of the pioneers of the world’s fastest logic silicon, ON

of the global networking backbone. The company pioneered the

there to provide the silicon solutions for the next-generation

Semiconductor is uniquely positioned to take advantage of

development of high-performance silicon products under the

network equipment.

this growth.

broadband umbrella to address increased performance demands
of next-generation networking equipment. ON Semiconductor is

STANDARD SEMICONDUCTORS—

creating advanced semiconductor processes that employ deep

DISCRETES AND BEYOND

sub-micron technology optimized for performance in OC-192
systems and beyond.
As demand for bandwidth rapidly accelerates,

ON Semiconductor’s discrete and standard logic
businesses provide the company with scale and leverage in
its manufacturing capability. These businesses, growing more

service providers strive to be the first to deploy broadband

than 7% last year, provide ON Semiconductor with a powerful

multi-service networks. Network equipment manufacturers

compliment to its growth engines and strategies because of

are challenged to meet the requirement for products that can

their low level of reinvestment, product pull through and cash

C O N S U M E R E L E C T R O N I C A P P L I C AT I O N S :
DVD players, home security systems, small household appliances,

help break the bandwidth bottleneck. This next generation of

generation. Discretes play an important role in virtually every

smart cards.

device that uses power.
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TODAY

I N D U S T R I A L A P P L I C A T I O N S : Automation and control systems,
power supplies, motor controls, lighting controls.

As consumer demand increases for competitively

Lucent, Nortel Networks, Nokia, Motorola, Visteon, Sony and

priced portable-electronic devices with increased functionality,

Sun Microsystems, electronic manufacturing service providers,

engineers face the difficult task of fitting an increasing number

such as Celestica, Flextronics, SCI and Solectron, and global

of faster, smaller and noise-sensitive micropackages into ever-

distributors, such as Arrow and Avnet.

shrinking design space. ON Semiconductor solves these design
issues by using advanced manufacturing processes to deliver a

ON SEMICONDUCTOR—THE

low-cost family of discrete-integration devices.

GLOBAL START UP

Micropackaging and discrete-integration capabili-

From its headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona, the

ties enable the company to significantly reduce the component

company commands nine manufacturing facilities, eleven

count and the required printed-circuit board space that are not

design centers, over 14,000 employees and numerous sales

possible with traditional techniques.

offices strategically placed worldwide to meet the needs
of its global customers.

CUSTOMERS—THE DRIVING

ON Semiconductor has design operations in San

F O R C E O F T H E C O M PA N Y ’ S

Jose and Irvine, California; Phoenix and Chandler, Arizona;

SUCCESS

East Greenwich, Rhode Island; Grenoble and Toulouse,

ON Semiconductor’s focus on service, growth,
cost and speed resonate with its customers. In fact, its customers recognized the company with more than 15 awards as

France; Roznov, Czech Republic; Tokyo and Aizu, Japan; and
Hong Kong, China.
The company operates manufacturing facilities in

a leading supplier during the past year. ON Semiconductor

Arizona and Rhode Island in the United States, China, the

sells its products to customers around the world including

Czech Republic, Japan, Malaysia, Mexico, the Philippines and

original equipment manufacturers, such as Cisco Systems,

Slovak Republic, directly or through joint ventures.

*Venture Development Corporation, the global market for power supply and
power management integrated circuits, second edition, December 2000.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected financial data for the
periods indicated. Immediately prior to our August 4, 1999 recapitalization
(“Recapitalization”), we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Motorola, Inc.
We derived the statement of operations data set forth below for the year
ended December 31, 2000 and the period from August 4, 1999 through
December 31, 1999, and the balance sheet data for December 31, 2000
and 1999, from our audited historical post-Recapitalization consolidated
financial statements. We derived the statement of operations data set forth

below for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 and
the period from January 1, 1999 through August 3, 1999, and balance
sheet data as of December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, from our audited
combined financial statements prior to our Recapitalization. You should
read this information in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our audited
consolidated financial statements and our audited combined financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report to Stockholders.

Post-Recapitalization

Pre-Recapitalization

August 4,
1999 though
December 31,
1999

January 1,
1999 through
August 3,
1999

1998

1997

1996

$2,073.9

$ 798.7

$986.4

$1,657.6

$1,992.7

$1,907.5

26.9
4.8
17.5
71.1
0.38

—
3.7
—
29.8
0.13

—
—
—
104.8

—
189.8
—
(136.3)

—
—
—
270.0

—
—
—
289.7

Year ended
December 31,
2000

Year ended December 31,

(in millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations data:
Total revenues
Write-off acquired in-process
research and development (1)
Restructuring charges
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment (2)
Net income (loss) (3)
Diluted earnings per common share (4)

$

$

December 31,
2000
Balance Sheet data:
Total assets
Long-term debt, less current portion (5)
Redeemable preferred stock (6)
Stockholders equity (deficit)/business equity (7)

$2,023.0
1,252.7
—
337.7

December 31,
1999

1998

1997

1996

$1,616.8
1,295.3
219.6
(247.7)

$ 840.7

$ 935.3

$ 768.9

—
681.0

—
866.4

—
746.1

(1) Write-off of acquired in-process research and development relates to the April 2000 acquisition of Cherry Semiconductor Corporation.
(2) Prepayment penalties, redemption premiums and the write-off of deferred debt issuance costs were incurred in connection with the repayment of debt in 2000, net of tax.
(3) Prior to our Recapitalization, cost of sales, research and development expenses, selling and marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses and interest expense included amounts allocated to us by Motorola. In addition, Motorola did not allocate income tax expense to us.
(4) Diluted earnings per common share for the year ended December 31, 2000 and the period from August 4, 1999 to December 31, 1999 are calculated by deducting dividends on our redeemable
preferred stock of $8.8 million and $10.6 million, respectively, from net income for such periods and then dividing the resulting amounts by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (including the incremental shares issuable upon the assumed exercise of stock options) during such periods.
(5) It is not meaningful to show long-term debt, less the current portion prior to our Recapitalization because Motorola’s cash management system was not designed to track centralized cash and
related financing transactions to the specific cash requirements of our business.
(6) Repaid with a portion of the proceeds from our initial public offering.
(7) For periods prior to our Recapitalization, business equity represented Motorola’s ownership interest in our net assets. All cash transactions, accounts receivable, accounts payable in the United
States, other allocations and intercompany transactions were reflected in this amount. For periods subsequent to our Recapitalization, our stockholders’ equity (deficit) consisted of our common
stock, paid-in-capital, accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and accumulated deficit.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our
audited historical post-Recapitalization consolidated financial statements
and our audited historical pre-Recapitalization combined financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report to Stockholders.
The post-Recapitalization consolidated financial statements present our
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows on a
stand-alone basis. The pre-Recapitalization combined financial statements
present the combined revenues less direct and allocated expenses before
taxes of the business of Motorola’s Semiconductor Components Group
prior to our August 4, 1999 Recapitalization and are not intended to be a
complete presentation of the results of operations or cash flows that
would have been recorded by us on a stand-alone basis.
ON Semiconductor is a global supplier of high performance
broadband and power management integrated circuits and standard
semiconductors used in numerous advanced devices ranging from high
speed fiber optic networking equipment to the precise power management functions found in today’s advanced portable electronics.
Recent developments ~ Entering 2001, we continue to experience

slowing demand for our products as customers have delayed or cancelled
bookings in order to manage their inventories in line with incoming business. With the recent economic downturn, our customers are unable to
provide us with much visibility to their expected requirements. We project
net product revenues for the first quarter of 2001 to be down approximately
30% from the fourth quarter of 2000, with an expected loss per share of
approximately $0.13–$0.15, excluding restructuring charges and amortization of goodwill and other intangibles. In the fourth quarter of 2000, we
reported net product revenues of $490.7 million and net income of $21.2
million, or $0.12 per share, excluding amortization of goodwill and other
intangibles. We are managing our resources prudently, staying close to
our customers for signals of an upturn and continuing our new product
development efforts. We will continue to actively adjust our cost structure
to limit the impact of reduced revenue on profitability. Cost reduction
actions include accelerating our manufacturing moves into lower cost
regions, transitioning higher-cost external supply to internal manufacturing, working with our material suppliers to further lower cost, and aggressively streamlining our overhead. As a result of actions already initiated,
we expect to incur a restructuring charge in the first quarter 2001. We
estimate the cash portion of this restructuring charge will be approximately $30–$40 million (before income taxes), primarily associated with
severance costs. We plan to continue to execute on our long-range growth
plan in broadband and power management solutions while appropriately
managing short-term demand fluctuations.
Recapitalization and initial public offering ~ Immediately

prior to our Recapitalization, we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Motorola. We held and continue to hold, through direct and indirect
subsidiaries, substantially all of the assets and operations of the Semiconductor Components Group of Motorola’s Semiconductor Products
Sector (“SCG”). As part of our Recapitalization, an affiliate of the Texas
Pacific Group purchased our common shares from Motorola for $337.5
million, and we redeemed common stock held by Motorola for a total of
approximately $952 million. As a result, Texas Pacific Group’s affiliate
owned approximately 91% and Motorola owned approximately 9% of
our voting common stock. To finance a portion of the Recapitalization,
Semiconductor Components Industries, LLC (“SCI LLC”), our primary
domestic operating subsidiary, borrowed $740.5 million under senior
secured bank facilities, we and SCI LLC issued $400 million of senior
subordinated notes and SCI LLC issued a $91 million junior subordinated
note to Motorola. We also issued mandatorily redeemable preferred stock
with a total liquidation preference of $209 million to Motorola and Texas
Pacific Group’s affiliate. Because Texas Pacific Group’s affiliate did not
acquire substantially all of SCG’s common stock, the basis of SCG’s
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes was not impacted by
our Recapitalization. At the time of the Recapitalization, Motorola agreed
to provide us with transition and manufacturing services in order to facilitate our transition to a stand-alone company independent of Motorola.
On May 3, 2000, we completed the initial public offering of our
common stock, selling 34.5 million shares with an issue price of $16 per
share. Net proceeds from the IPO (after deducting issuance costs) were
approximately $514.8 million. The net proceeds were used to redeem all
outstanding preferred stock (including accrued dividends), redeem a portion of the senior subordinated notes and prepay a portion of the loans
outstanding under the senior bank facilities. In connection with this debt
prepayment, we incurred prepayment penalties and redemption premiums
of $17.3 million and wrote off $11.9 million of debt issuance costs. These
amounts, totaling $29.2 million ($17.5 million or $0.11 per share, net of
income taxes), have been classified as an extraordinary loss in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income for 2000.
Acquisition ~ On April 3, 2000, we acquired all of the outstanding
capital stock of Cherry Semiconductor Corporation for approximately
$253.2 million in cash (including acquisition related costs), which was
financed with cash on hand and borrowings of $220.0 million under
our senior bank facilities. Cherry, which was renamed Semiconductor
Components Industries of Rhode Island, Inc., designs and manufactures
analog and mixed signal integrated circuits for the power management
and automotive markets, and had revenues for its fiscal year ended
February 29, 2000 of $129.1 million.

The Cherry acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting and, as a result, the purchase price and related
costs were allocated to the estimated fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the time of the acquisition based on independent
appraisals and management estimates as follows (in millions):
Fair value of tangible net assets
Developed technology
In-process research and development
Assembled workforce
Excess of purchase price over net assets acquired (goodwill)

$ 71.3
59.3
26.9
10.0
85.7
$253.2

Developed technology and assembled workforce are being amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of five years
while goodwill is being amortized over an estimated life of ten years.
Accumulated amortization of these intangible assets totaled $16.8 million
at December 31, 2000.
The fair value of the acquired in-process research and development was determined using the income approach, which discounts
expected future cash flows to present value. Significant assumptions
that had to be made in using this approach included revenue and operating margin projections and determination of the applicable discount
rate. The fair value of the acquired in-process research and development
was based on sales forecasts and cost assumptions projected to be
achievable by Cherry on a stand-alone basis. Operating margins were
based on cost of goods sold and selling, general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenues. All projected revenue and cost
information was based on historical results and trends and did not
include any synergies or cost savings that may result from the acquisition. The rate used to discount future projected cash flows resulting from
the acquired in-process research and development was 20%, which
was derived from a weighted average cost of capital analysis adjusted
upward to reflect additional risks inherent in the development life cycle.
At the date of acquisition, the in-process research and development
had not yet reached technological feasibility and no alternative future uses
had been identified. Accordingly, these costs were expensed as of the
acquisition date. The expected release dates for the products incorporating
the acquired technology vary, but we expect that such products will be
completed and begin to generate cash flows in 2001. The ultimate development of these technologies remains a significant risk due to the remaining efforts required to achieve technical viability, rapidly changing
customer markets, uncertain standards for new products and significant
competitive threats from numerous companies. The nature of the efforts to
develop the acquired technology into commercially viable products consists principally of design and development, engineering and testing activities necessary to determine that the product can meet market expectations,

including functionality and technical requirements. Failure to bring these
products to market in a timely manner could result in a loss of market
share, or a lost opportunity to capitalize on emerging markets, and could
have a material adverse impact on our business and operating results.
The forecasts used in valuing the acquired in-process research and
development were based upon assumptions we believe are reasonable;
however, such assumptions may be incomplete or inaccurate, and unanticipated events and circumstances are likely to occur. There can be no
assurance that the underlying assumptions used to estimate expected
project sales or profits, or the events associated with such projects, will
transpire as estimated. For these reasons, actual results may vary from the
projected results.
Cherry’s results of operations have been included in our consolidated results from the date of acquisition. The following pro forma disclosures present our results of operations for 2000 as if we had acquired
Cherry as of January 1, 2000 (in millions, except per share data):
(unaudited)

Total revenues
Net income before extraordinary loss
Net income
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinary loss
Diluted earnings per share

$2,110.3
85.4
67.9
$ 0.46
$ 0.35

These amounts include the results of Cherry for the first quarter of
2000 and are adjusted to reflect interest and amortization charges that
would have occurred had the purchase taken place on January 1, 2000.
The amounts are based upon certain assumptions and estimates, and do
not reflect any benefit from any cost savings, which might be achieved
from combined operations. The pro forma results are not necessarily
indicative of the actual results that would have occurred had the acquisition been consummated as of January 1, 2000.
Market ~ Our products are sold primarily to three different customer
bases: original equipment manufacturers, electronic manufacturing service providers and distributors. Since the products we sell are ultimately
purchased by end users for use in a variety of markets, we are less
dependent on either specific customers or specific end-use applications.
Direct sales to original equipment manufacturers, electronic manufacturing service providers and distributors accounted for approximately 43%,
12% and 45%, respectively, of our net product revenues in 2000 and
approximately 48%, 8% and 44%, respectively, of our net product revenues in 1999. We expect overall sales to original equipment manufacturers to continue to decline as a percentage of sales as these customers
increasingly purchase component products through distributors or outsource their manufacturing to electronic manufacturing service providers.
Distributors and electronic manufacturing service providers are representing a larger share of the market in general, and we expect these customers
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to represent a larger percentage of our total addressable market in the
future. We do not anticipate any significant effect on our overall sales
from this shift in customer base.
Market share ~ We experienced a decline in our market share from

1994 through 2000. Our market share as a percentage of our total
addressable market was 10.3% in 1994, 9.1% in 1995, 8.6% in 1996,
8.5% in 1997, 7.9% in 1998, 7.3% in 1999 and 6.6% in 2000. We
believe this decline was attributable primarily to the emphasis of
Motorola’s Semiconductor Products Sector, prior to our Recapitalization,
on the sale of more complex and higher-priced semiconductors, including
the diversion of research and development, capital expenditures and
manufacturing capacity to these products and incentives provided to
their sales force and third-party distributors linked to the sale of these
products. Although our total addressable market may continue to decline
in 2001, we expect that any such decline will not materially affect our
operating results because we have chosen to focus on products with
significant growth potential, such as analog and emitter-coupled logic
(“ECL”) products.

Joint ventures ~ We have a majority ownership in two joint ventures

located in the Czech Republic. As we have the ability to control these
joint ventures, we have consolidated them in our financial statements.
We also have a majority interest in a Chinese joint venture and, through
January 31, 2001, a 50% interest in a joint venture located in Malaysia.
As we do not have the ability to control these joint ventures, we use the
equity method to account for them in our financial statements.
The other owner of the Malaysia joint venture is Philips
Semiconductors International B.V. (“Philips”). The terms of the joint
venture agreement provide Philips with the right to purchase our interest,
between January 2001 and July 2002. On February 1, 2001, Philips
exercised its purchase right, acquiring full ownership of this joint venture.
This transaction resulted in proceeds of approximately $20.4 million and
a pretax gain of approximately $3.2 million. We do not expect the acquisition by Philips to have a material impact on our financial condition or
results of operations.

Results of Operations
Earnings per common share ~ Our diluted earnings per share on an actual and adjusted basis for 2000 and for the period from August 4, 1999

to December 31, 1999 is as follows:
Period from August 4, 1999
through December 31, 1999
in millions
Net income
Less: Redeemable preferred stock dividends
Net income available for common stock
Plus (net of tax):
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles
Write-off of acquired in-process research and development
Restructuring charges
Extraordinary loss

per share

$ 29.8
(10.6)

Year ended
December 31, 2000
in millions

per share

$ 71.1
(8.8)

19.2

$0.13

62.3

$0.38

—
—
3.7
—

—
—
0.03
—

10.1
16.1
2.9
17.5

0.06
0.10
0.02
0.10

Adjusted net income available for common stock

$ 22.9

$0.16

$108.9

$0.66

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Diluted

144.6

165.6

The following table summarizes certain information relating to our operating results that has been derived from our audited post-Recapitalization
consolidated financial statements and our audited pre-Recapitalization combined financial statements (in millions):
PreRecapitalization

PostRecapitalization

Pro Forma

PostRecapitalization

January 1
through
August 3,
1999

August 4
through
December 31,
1999

Year
ended
December 31,
1999

Year
ended
December 31,
2000

$1,495.3
162.3

$895.4
91.0

$728.8
69.9

$1,624.2
160.9

$2,012.2
61.7

1,657.6
1,222.3

986.4
711.3

798.7
573.3

1,785.1
1,284.6

2,073.9
1,355.0

Gross profit

435.3

275.1

225.4

500.5

718.9

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles
Write-off of acquired in-process research and development
Restructuring charges

67.5
92.4
205.7
—
—
189.8

34.3
39.0
89.4
—
—
—

16.3
24.6
77.3
—
—
3.7

50.6
63.6
166.7
—
—
3.7

69.2
100.1
233.4
16.8
26.9
4.8

555.4

162.7

121.9

284.6

451.2

(120.1)

112.4

103.5

215.9

267.7

(19.8)
5.7

(9.1)
2.4

(55.9)
1.4

(65.0)
3.8

(131.2)
4.4

Year ended
December 31,
1998
Revenues:
Net product revenues
Foundry revenues
Total revenues
Cost of sales

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income (expenses), net:
Interest expense
Equity in earnings of joint ventures
Other income (expenses), net

(14.1)

(6.7)

(54.5)

(61.2)

(126.8)

(134.2)
(2.1)

105.7
(0.9)

49.0
(1.1)

154.7
(2.0)

140.9
(2.2)

$ (136.3)

$104.8

47.9

$ 152.7

Provision for income taxes

n/a

n/a

(18.1)

n/a

(50.1)

Net income before extraordinary loss
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment, net of tax

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a

29.8
—

n/a
n/a

88.6
(17.5)

Net income

n/a

n/a

$ 29.8

n/a

Income before income taxes, minority interests and extraordinary loss
Minority interests
Revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes

138.7

$

71.1
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The following table summarizes certain information related to our operating results expressed as a percentage of net product revenues:
PreRecapitalization
Year
ended
December 31,
1998

January 1
through
August 3,
1999

PostRecapitalization

Pro Forma

PostRecapitalization

August 4
through
December 31,
1999

Year
ended
December 31,
1999

Year
ended
December 31,
2000

Revenues:
Net product revenues
Foundry revenues

100.0%
10.9

100.0%
10.2

100.0%
9.6

100.0%
9.9

100.0%
3.1

Total revenues
Cost of sales

110.9
81.8

110.2
79.5

109.6
78.7

109.9
79.1

103.1
67.4

Gross profit

29.1

30.7

30.9

30.8

35.7

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles
Write-off of acquired in-process research and development
Restructuring charges

4.5
6.2
13.8
—
—
12.7

3.8
4.4
10.0
—
—
—

2.2
3.4
10.6
—
—
0.5

3.1
3.9
10.3
—
—
0.2

3.5
5.0
11.6
0.8
1.3
0.2

37.2

18.2

16.7

17.5

22.4

Operating income (loss)

Total operating expenses

(8.1)

12.5

14.2

13.3

13.3

Other income (expenses), net:
Interest expense
Equity in earnings of joint ventures

(1.3)
0.4

(1.0)
0.3

(7.7)
0.2

(4.0)
0.2

(6.5)
0.2

(0.9)

(0.7)

(7.5)

(3.8)

(6.3)

Income before income taxes, minority interests and extraordinary loss
Minority interests

(9.0)
(0.1)

11.8
(0.1)

6.7
(0.2)

9.5
(0.1)

7.0
(0.1)

Revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes

(9.1)%

Other income (expenses), net

11.7%

6.5

9.4%

n/a

n/a

(2.4)

n/a

(2.5)

Net income before extraordinary loss
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a

4.1
—

n/a
n/a

4.4
(0.9)

Net income

n/a

n/a

4.1%

n/a

Provision for income taxes

6.9

3.5%

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 1999
Total revenues ~ Total revenues increased $288.8 million, or 16.2%,

to $2,073.9 million in 2000 from $1,785.1 million in 1999, due to an
increase in net product revenues, partially offset by a planned decrease in
foundry revenues as described below.
Net product revenues ~ Net product revenues increased $388.0
million, or 23.9%, to $2,012.2 million in 2000 from $1,624.2 million in
1999. Unit volume increased by 32.5% in 2000 compared to 1999, while
the average selling price for our products decreased by 6.5%, primarily as
a result of increased micropackaged business, in higher volume, lower
average selling price small signal products. Net revenues for broadband
products, which accounted for 15.5% of net product revenues in 2000,
increased 50.4% compared to 1999 as a result of a strong increase in

demand for ECL products. Net revenues for analog products, which
accounted for 26.5% of net product revenues in 2000, increased 61.6%
compared to 1999 as a result of the Cherry acquisition and increased
demand in the power management market. Net revenues for standard
semiconductor products, which accounted for 58.0% of net product
revenues for 2000, increased 7.4% compared to 1999, fueled mainly
by increased demand in micropackaged products within the small
signal and rectifier product families. Other product families, including
thyristors, TMOS and standard logic also experienced revenue growth
due to increases in demand. Approximately 46%, 33% and 21% of our
net product revenues were derived from the Americas, Asia/Pacific and
Europe (including the Middle East), respectively, in both 2000 and 1999.

Foundry revenues ~ Foundry revenues decreased $99.2 million, or
61.7%, to $61.7 million in 2000 from $160.9 million in 1999. These
foundry revenues are a result of agreements made with Motorola in
connection with our Recapitalization. We expect that these revenues will
continue to decline in the future as the separation from Motorola progresses. Motorola continues to be one of our largest original equipment
manufacturer customers, and those product revenues are distinctly different from, and not included with, the aforementioned foundry revenues.
Cost of sales ~ Cost of sales increased $70.4 million, or 5.5%, to

$1,355.0 million in 2000 from $1,284.6 million in 1999, primarily as a
result of increased sales volume, partially offset by cost reductions from
the restructuring programs instituted over the past three years. These
programs included the implementation of ongoing cost-saving initiatives
to rationalize our product portfolio, close plants and relocate or outsource related operations to take advantage of lower-cost labor markets
and make our manufacturing processes more efficient as described below
in “Restructuring charges.” We expect these cost reductions will continue
to have a positive impact on our gross margin as a percentage of net
product revenues.
Gross profit ~ Gross profit (computed as total revenues less cost of

sales) increased $218.4 million, or 43.6%, to $718.9 million in 2000
from $500.5 million in 1999. As a percentage of total revenues, gross
margin improved to 34.7% (35.4% for product gross margin) in 2000
from 28.0% (30.4% for product gross margin) in 1999. The improvement
in gross profit resulted mainly from reductions in costs from our restructuring programs, increased sales volume and a shift in product mix
toward higher margin products, including broadband and analog families.
O P E R AT I N G E X P E N S E S
Research and development ~ Research and development costs
increased $18.6 million, or 36.8%, to $69.2 million in 2000 from $50.6
million in 1999, primarily as a result of the Cherry acquisition and
planned increased investments in research and development, offset by the
elimination of corporate allocations from Motorola incurred in 1999 prior
to our Recapitalization, which totaled $13.3 million. Research and development costs that we incurred directly (excluding the corporate allocations from Motorola in 1999) increased $31.9 million, or 86%, from 1999
to 2000. As a percentage of net product revenues, research and development costs increased to 3.5% in 2000 from 3.1% in 1999. During 2000,
we introduced 422 new products. The main emphasis of our new product
development is in the high-growth market applications of power management and broadband solutions with 80% of our overall research and development investment targeted in these areas. Our long-term target for
research and development costs is 5-6% of revenues.

Selling and marketing ~ Selling and marketing expenses increased
by $36.5 million, or 57.4%, to $100.1 million in 2000 from $63.6 million
in 1999. The increase in selling and marketing expenses was attributable
to the Cherry acquisition and increased branding and marketing costs
associated with establishing the ON Semiconductor trade name. As a percentage of net product revenues, these costs increased to 5.0% in 2000
from 3.9% in 1999.
General and administrative~ General and administrative expenses
increased by $66.7 million, or 40.0% to $233.4 million in 2000 from
$166.7 million in 1999, as a result of the Cherry acquisition, costs
incurred to establish corporate functions, costs resulting from our separation from Motorola, higher performance bonuses in 2000 and increases
in professional services. As a percentage of net product revenues, these
costs increased to 11.6% in 2000 from 10.3% in 1999.
Write-off of acquired in-process research and development ~

In 2000, we incurred a $26.9 million charge for the write-off of acquired
in-process research and development resulting from the Cherry acquisition. No such charges were incurred in 1999.
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles ~ Amortization
of goodwill and other intangibles was $16.8 million in 2000 due to the
intangible assets that were acquired with Cherry, including amounts
related to developed technology, assembled workforce and goodwill.
No such amortization was charged in 1999.
Restructuring charges ~ In March 2000, we recorded a $4.8 million
charge to cover costs associated with a restructuring program at our manufacturing facility in Guadalajara, Mexico. The charge included $3.2 million to cover employee separation costs associated with the termination
of approximately 500 employees and $1.6 million for equipment writedowns that were charged directly against the related assets.
In September 2000, we completed a detailed evaluation of the costs
to be incurred to complete the March 2000 restructuring program. Based
on this evaluation, we released $0.8 million of the remaining restructuring
reserve for employee separation costs to income as a credit to restructuring charges in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income. Also in conjunction with this evaluation, we recorded an
additional charge of $0.8 million for asset impairments that was charged
directly against the related assets.
In December 1999, we recorded a restructuring charge of $11.1 million, including $3.5 million to cover separation costs relating to approximately 150 employees at a manufacturing facility in Mesa, Arizona that
was closed in December 1999, as well as a charge of $7.6 million to
cover equipment write-downs at that facility and other non-cash business
exit costs that were charged directly against the related assets.
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A summary of activity in our restructuring reserves during 2000 is as follows (in millions):
Balance as of
December 31,
1999
Consolidation of manufacturing operations
Employee separations
Total
Operating income ~ Operating income increased $51.8 million, or
24.0%, to $267.7 million in 2000 from $215.9 million in 1999. This
increase was due to increased net product revenues, an improved product
mix towards higher-margin products and cost reductions from our prior
period restructuring programs, offset by increased investment in research
and development, increased costs associated with our separation from
Motorola and the amortization of goodwill and other intangibles. Cost
reductions resulting from our prior period restructuring programs relate to
the consolidation of manufacturing operations and the relocation or outsourcing of related operations to take advantage of lower-cost labor markets and make our manufacturing processes more efficient.
Interest expense ~ Interest expense increased $66.2 million, or

101.8%, to $131.2 million in 2000 from $65.0 million in 1999, due to
borrowings under our senior bank facilities and the issuance of our senior
subordinated notes and our junior subordinated note in order to finance
our Recapitalization. A portion of the interest expense for 1999 was an
allocation we received from Motorola for the portion of the year prior to
our Recapitalization.
Equity in earnings of joint ventures ~ Equity in earnings from
joint ventures increased $0.6 million to $4.4 million in 2000 from $3.8
million in 1999, due primarily to increased capacity and manufacturing
efficiencies in our Chinese joint venture and improved capacity utilization
in both our Chinese and Malaysian joint ventures.
Minority interests ~ Minority interests, which represent the portion

of net income of two Czech joint ventures attributable to the minority
owners of each joint venture, increased to $2.2 million in 2000 from
$2.0 million in 1999, due to increased net income from the joint ventures, offset by our acquisition of a portion of the minority interests in
the fourth quarter of 2000, which reduced the effective ownership of the
minority shareholders.
Provision for income taxes ~ Provision for income taxes increased

$32.0 million, or 176.8%, to $50.1 million in 2000 from $18.1 million in
1999. A provision for taxes was not made for periods prior to our Recapitalization. Our effective tax rate decreased to 35.6% in 2000 as compared
to 37.0% from our post-Recapitalization period for 1999 primarily due to
increased research and foreign tax credits.
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment ~ In May 2000, we

used a portion of the proceeds from our IPO to redeem a portion of our

Provision

Amounts
Used

Reserve
Released

Balance as of
December 31,
2000

$6.0
3.5

$—
3.2

$ (6.0)
(5.2)

$ —
(0.8)

$—
0.7

$9.5

$3.2

$(11.2)

$(0.8)

$0.7

senior subordinated notes and prepay a portion of the loans outstanding
under our senior bank facilities. In connection with this debt prepayment,
we incurred an extraordinary loss of $29.2 million ($17.5 million, or
$0.11 per share, net of income taxes) related to prepayment penalties
and redemption premiums as well as the write-off of capitalized debt
issuance costs.
Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 1999
Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1998
Total revenues ~ Total revenues increased $127.5 million, or 7.7%,

to $1,785.1 million in 1999 from $1,657.6 million in 1998, due to an
increase in net product revenues partially offset by a slight decrease in
foundry revenues. Foundry revenues relate to products manufactured for
Motorola and are recognized at the time of shipment to Motorola.
Net product revenues ~ Net product revenues increased $128.9 million, or 8.6%, to $1,624.2 million in 1999 from $1,495.3 million in 1998.
Unit volume increased by 27.1% in 1999 compared to 1998, while the
average selling price for our products decreased by 14.6%, primarily a
result of excess semiconductor manufacturing capacity, product mix and
aggressive pricing actions taken to maintain market share. Net revenues
for analog products, which accounted for 20.3% of net product revenues
in 1999, increased 17.9% compared to 1998, as a result of increased
demand in the telecommunications industry and our focus on expanding
the sales of this product line. Net revenues for broadband products, which
accounted for 12.8% of net product revenues in 1999, increased 43.8%
compared to 1998, due to increased demand for ECL products. Net revenues for standard semiconductor products, which accounted for 66.9%
of net product revenues in 1999, remained relatively flat compared to
1998, as increased demand in the rectifier, thyristor and zener product
families was partially offset by the sale of a product line in August 1998.
Approximately 46%, 33% and 21% of our net product revenues in
1999 were derived from sales to end users, directly or through distributors or electronic manufacturing service providers, in the Americas,
Asia/Pacific and Europe (including the Middle East), respectively, compared to 46%, 30% and 24%, respectively, in 1998.
Foundry revenues ~ Foundry revenues decreased $1.4 million, or

0.9%, to $160.9 million in 1999 from $162.3 million in 1998. We expect
that foundry revenues will decline in the future as the separation from
Motorola progresses.

Cost of sales ~ Cost of sales increased $62.3 million, or 5.1%, to

$1,284.6 million in 1999 from $1,222.3 million in 1998, primarily as a
result of increased sales volume, partially offset by cost reductions from
the restructuring program commenced in 1998. The restructuring program
included the implementation of ongoing cost-saving initiatives to rationalize our product portfolio, close plants and relocate or outsource related
operations to take advantage of lower-cost labor markets and make our
manufacturing processes more efficient. In connection with the restructuring program, we have closed wafer fabrication and assembly and test
facilities located in the Philippines and Arizona and have outsourced or
moved related operations to other facilities in Malaysia, Mexico, the
Czech Republic and Japan. We expect these cost reductions will continue
to have a positive impact on our gross margin as a percentage of net
product revenues.
Gross profit ~ Gross profit increased 15.0% to $500.5 million in 1999
from $435.3 million in 1998. As a percentage of net product revenues,
gross margin was 30.8% in 1999 compared to 29.1% in 1998. The
improvement in gross profit resulted mainly from reductions in costs from
our restructuring program, which were offset, in part, by lower average
selling prices.

O P E R AT I N G E X P E N S E S
Research and development ~ Research and development costs
decreased $16.9 million, or 25.0%, to $50.6 million in 1999 from $67.5
million in 1998, primarily as a result of the discontinuation of related
expense allocations from Motorola following our Recapitalization. As a
percentage of net product revenues, these costs decreased to 3.1% in
1999 from 4.5% in 1998. Research and development costs that we
incurred directly increased to $37.3 million in 1999 from $34.4 million in
1998, while research and development costs allocated from Motorola
decreased to $13.3 million from $33.1 million for the same periods. We
expect our research and development costs to increase as we concentrate
on developing products for our high-growth markets.

Balance as of
December 31,
1998
Consolidation of manufacturing operations
Business exits
Employee separations
Total

Selling and marketing ~ Selling and marketing expenses
decreased by 31.2% to $63.6 million in 1999 from $92.4 million in
1998. As a percentage of net product revenues, these costs decreased to
3.9% in 1999 from 6.2% in 1998. The decrease in selling and marketing expenses was attributable to workforce reductions associated with
our restructuring programs.
General and administrative ~ General and administrative
expenses decreased by 19.0% to $166.7 million in 1999 from $205.7 million in 1998, as a result of worldwide personnel reductions associated with
our restructuring programs and as a result of our Recapitalization and the
discontinuation of related expense allocations from Motorola. As a percentage of net product revenues, these costs decreased to 10.3% in 1999
from 13.8% in 1998. General and administrative expenses allocated from
Motorola decreased to $50.0 million in 1999 from $115.2 million in 1998.
Restructuring charges ~ In June 1998, Motorola recorded a charge
to cover one-time costs related to a restructuring program, including
costs related to the consolidation of manufacturing operations, the exit
of non-strategic or poorly performing businesses by discontinuance of
selected product lines and the rationalization of our product portfolio,
and a reduction in the number of our employees. Asset impairment and
other charges were also recorded for the write-down of assets that had
become impaired as a result of business conditions or business portfolio
decisions. Motorola allocated $189.8 million of this charge to us, of
which $53.9 million represented asset impairments charged directly
against machinery and equipment. The remaining charges consisted of
$13.2 million for the consolidation of manufacturing operations, $20.7
million for business exits and $102.0 million for employment reductions.
Through December 31, 1998, we had spent $67.9 million in connection
with this restructuring program, including $58.5 million for employee
separation costs and $9.4 million for business exits, leaving a reserve
of $68.0 million as of that date.
A summary of activity in our restructuring reserves during 1999 is
as follows (in millions):

Provision

Amounts
Used

Amounts
Retained by
Motorola

Reserve
Released

Balance as of
December 31,
1999

$13.2
11.3
43.5

$—
—
3.5

$ (4.6)
(6.5)
(14.7)

$ —
—
(28.8)

$(2.6)
(4.8)
—

$6.0
—
3.5

$68.0

$3.5

$(25.8)

$(28.8)

$(7.4)

$9.5
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At the time of our Recapitalization, it was determined that the remaining 900 employees whose positions were to have been eliminated in connection with the restructuring described above would only be entitled to
termination benefits if they remained employees of and were terminated
by Motorola. Accordingly, Motorola agreed to retain the employees as
well as the remaining employee separation reserve of $28.8 million as of
August 3, 1999. Motorola has advised us that the remaining employees
were released over the balance of 1999 and that the related costs were
charged against the employee separation reserve.
During the fourth quarter of 1999, we completed a detailed evaluation
of the costs to be incurred to complete the remaining actions under our
restructuring and have, as a result, released $7.4 million of our restructuring reserve to income as a credit to restructuring charges in our consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income.
In December 1999, we recorded a restructuring charge of $11.1 million, including $3.5 million to cover separation costs relating to approximately 150 employees at a manufacturing facility in Mesa, Arizona that
was closed in December 1999, as well as a charge of $7.6 million to
cover equipment write-downs at that facility and other non-cash business
exit costs that were charged directly against the related assets.
Operating income (loss) ~ We generated operating income of

$215.9 million in 1999 compared to an operating loss of $120.1 million
in 1998. This improvement is attributable to the restructuring charge in
1998 as well as subsequent cost reductions resulting from the restructuring and an increase in net product sales. As described above, cost reductions from the restructuring related to the consolidation of manufacturing
operations, the relocation or outsourcing of related operations to take
advantage of lower-cost labor markets, the exit of non-strategic or poorly
performing businesses by discontinuance of select product lines and the
rationalization of our product portfolio, and a reduction in the number of
employees. Excluding the restructuring charge, we generated operating
income of $69.7 million, or 4.7%, of net product revenues during 1998.
Interest expense ~ Interest expense increased $45.2 million, or 228%,
to $65.0 million in 1999 from $19.8 million in 1998, due to borrowings
under our senior bank facilities and the issuance of our senior subordinated notes and our junior subordinated note in order to finance our
Recapitalization.
Equity in earnings of joint ventures ~ Equity in earnings from
joint ventures decreased $1.9 million, or 33.3%, to $3.8 million in 1999
from $5.7 million in 1998, due primarily to reduced earnings in the
Leshan, China joint venture associated with higher financing costs.
Minority interests ~ Minority interests represent the portion of net

income of two Czech joint ventures attributable to the minority owners of
each joint venture. As previously described, we consolidate these joint
ventures in our financial statements. Minority interests were $2.0 million
in 1999, compared to $2.1 million in 1998.

Revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes ~

Revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes increased $289.0
million, to income of $152.7 million in 1999, from a deficit of $136.3 million in 1998, due primarily to the restructuring charge in 1998, an increase
in net product revenues and the cost reductions associated with the
restructuring, partially offset by average sales price declines.
Provision for income taxes ~ Provision for income taxes was

$18.1 million in 1999. No provision for taxes was made for periods prior
to our Recapitalization.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Prior to our Recapitalization, Motorola performed cash management
on a centralized basis, and its Semiconductor Products Sector processed
receivables and payables, payroll and other activities for the Semiconductor
Components Group. Most of these systems were not designed to track
receivables, liabilities, cash receipts and payments on a division-specific
basis. Accordingly, it is not practical to determine assets and liabilities
associated with the Semiconductor Components Group prior to our
Recapitalization.
Net cash provided by operating activities was $301.3 million in
2000 compared to $40.7 million for the period from August 4, 1999
to December 31, 1999. Cash generated by operating activities in 2000
was due primarily to net income of $71.1 million, adjusted for non-cash
charges, including depreciation and amortization of $158.9 million, the
write-off of acquired in-process research and development of $26.9 million and non-operating charges relating to the extraordinary loss on debt
prepayment of $29.2 million. Cash generated by operating activities was
also affected by changes in assets and liabilities, including an increase
in accounts payable of $47.1 million and an increase in accrued expenses
of $34.8 million, offset by an increase in inventories of $33.1 million
and an increase in other assets of $25.2 million as well as a decrease in
income taxes payable of $8.1 million and a decrease in accrued interest
of $12.2 million.
Net cash used in investing activities was $467.9 million in 2000
compared to $95.4 million for the period from August 4, 1999 to
December 31, 1999. Net cash used in 2000 included a net cash outflow of
$253.2 million resulting from the Cherry acquisition, capital expenditures
of $198.8 million and loans to and investments in unconsolidated entities
totaling $32.5 million, offset by proceeds from sales of property, plant
and equipment of $18.1 million. Capital expenditures were $119.4 million
in 1999 ($103.6 million, net of transfers prior to our Recapitalization).
Capital expenditures in 2001 are expected to be approximately $140 million and will be used primarily to continue the development of broadband
design and manufacturing capacity, continue IT infrastructure upgrades
and provide general maintenance of manufacturing facilities.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $228.8 million for
2000 compared to $181.9 million for the period from August 4, 1999
to December 31, 1999. Cash inflows from financing activities in 2000
consisted of borrowings from senior credit facilities used to finance the
Cherry acquisition, a loan from a Japanese bank to finance capital expenditures at our Japanese manufacturing facilities and proceeds from our
initial public offering. In May 2000, we sold 34.5 million shares of our
common stock with an issue price of $16 per share. Net proceeds from
this offering (after deducting issuance costs) were approximately $514.8
million. Cash outflows from financing activities included the redemption
of our outstanding preferred stock of $228.4 million (including accrued
dividends), the redemption of a portion of our senior subordinated notes
of $156.8 million (including prepayment penalties) and the prepayment of
a portion of the loans outstanding under our senior bank facilities totaling
$131.5 million (including prepayment penalties) all with the proceeds
from our initial public offering. The cash provided by financing activities
for the period from August 4, 1999 to December 31, 1999 was primarily
from the issuance of common and preferred stock to an affiliate of Texas
Pacific Group and the borrowings incurred in conjunction with our
Recapitalization, less amounts paid to Motorola as part of our
Recapitalization.
As of December 31, 2000, long-term debt (including current maturities) totaled $1,258.3 million and stockholders’ equity was $337.7 million. Long-term debt included $869.3 million under our senior bank
facilities, $260.0 million senior subordinated notes, $104.5 million junior
subordinated notes and a $24.5 million note payable to a Japanese bank.
We are required to begin making principal payments on our senior bank
facilities in the third quarter of 2001.
As of December 31, 2000, $136.5 million of our $150 million
revolving facility was available, reflecting outstanding letters of credit of
$13.5 million. In addition, the terms of our credit agreements allow us to
incur further additional indebtedness.
Our credit agreements currently do, and other debt instruments we
enter into in the future may, impose various restrictions and covenants
that could limit our ability to respond to market conditions, to provide for
unanticipated capital investments or to take advantage of business opportunities. At December 31, 2000, we were in compliance with all debt
covenants. Our ability to remain in compliance with these covenants, to
make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, and to fund working capital, capital expenditures, research and development efforts and
strategic acquisitions will depend on our ability to generate cash in the
future, which is subject to our future performance, general economic,
financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors, some of
which may be beyond our control.
Our primary future cash needs, both in the short term and in the
long term, will continue to be for capital expenditures, debt service, working capital and potential business acquisitions. We believe that cash flows

from operations and existing credit facilities will be sufficient to enable us
to service our indebtedness and to fund our other liquidity needs (other
than potential business acquisitions) for the next 12 months. As part of
our business strategy, we continuously review acquisition opportunities
and proposals. We expect to finance any future acquisitions with borrowings under our revolving credit facility and additional equity and debt
financing, to the extent available on attractive terms.
Historically, our revenues have been affected by the seasonal trends of
the semiconductor and related industries. As a result of these trends, we
typically experienced sales increases in the first two quarters of the year and
relatively flat sales levels in the third and fourth quarters. However, over the
past three years, various events have disrupted this pattern. In 1998, third
quarter revenues declined, primarily as a result of the Asian economic crisis. In 1999, third and fourth quarter revenues increased due to the continuing recovery in the semiconductor market. In 2000, fourth quarter revenues
declined due to slowing demand in the semiconductor market.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements and
Related Interpretations
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 133”) which
establishes standards for the accounting and reporting for derivative
instruments, including derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and hedging activities. This statement generally requires recognition of gains and losses on hedging instruments based on changes in fair
value. SFAS 133, as amended by SFAS 137, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities—Deferral of the Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 133,” and SFAS 138, “Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” is effective for
us as of January 1, 2001.
Our interest rate swaps in effect at January 1, 2000 have been
designated as cash flow hedges, which will be measured at fair value and
recorded as assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. We
estimate that the adoption of SFAS 133 will require an after-tax charge of
approximately $3.4 million to accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) as of January 1, 2001. This charge consists of an approximate
$2.1 million adjustment necessary to record our interest rate swaps in the
consolidated balance sheet at their estimated fair values as well as the
write-off of an approximate $3.5 million deferred charge (included in other
assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31,
2000) relating to the payment made in December 2000 for the early termination of an interest rate protection agreement which had been designated
as a hedge for a portion of the amounts outstanding under our senior
bank facilities, both before income taxes of approximately $2.2 million.
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In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB 101”), “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements.” SAB 101 provides guidance on the
recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial statements
filed with the SEC and, as amended, became effective for us in the fourth
quarter of 2000, with effect from January 1, 2000. The implementation of
SAB 101 did not impact our results of operations.
In March 2000, the FASB issued Interpretation No.44, “Accounting
for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation—an interpretation
of APB Opinion 25” (“FIN 44”). FIN 44 clarifies among other issues
(a) the definition of an employee of applying APB No. 25, (b) the criteria
for determining whether a plan qualifies as a noncompensatory plan,
(c) the accounting consequences of various modifications to the terms
of a previously fixed stock option award and (d) the accounting for an
exchange of stock compensation awards in a business combination. The
adoption of this interpretation did not impact our results of operations.
Business Risk and Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report to Stockholders includes “forward-looking statements” as that term is defined in Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are often characterized by the
use of words such as “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “projects,” “may,”
“will,” “intends,” “plans,” or “anticipates,” or by discussions of strategy,

plans or intentions. All forward-looking statements in the Annual Report
to Stockholders are made based on management’s current expectations
and estimates, which involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that
could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in forwardlooking statements. Among these factors are changes in overall economic
conditions, the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, changes in
demand for our products, changes in inventories at our customers and
distributors, technological and product development risks, availability of
manufacturing capacity, availability of raw materials, competitors’ actions,
loss of key customers, order cancellations or reduced bookings, changes
in manufacturing yields, restructuring programs and the impact of such
programs, control of costs and expenses, inability to reduce manufacturing and selling, general and administrative costs, litigation, risks associated with acquisitions, changes in management, and risks involving
environmental or other governmental regulation. Additional factors that
could affect the company’s future operating results are described from
time to time in ON Semiconductor’s Securities and Exchange Commission
reports, including but not limited to those found at Exhibit 99.1, entitled
“Risk Factors,” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000, and subsequently filed reports. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. We
assume no obligation to update such information.

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

To the Stockholders of ON Semiconductor Corporation:
The financial statements of ON Semiconductor Corporation published in this report were prepared by company management, who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, applying certain estimates and judgments as
required. The financial information elsewhere in this report is consistent
with the statements.
ON Semiconductor maintains a system of internal control adequate
to provide reasonable assurance that its transactions are appropriately
recorded and reported, its assets are protected and its established policies
are followed. This system is enforced by written policies and procedures,
effective internal audit and a qualified financial staff.
Our independent accountants, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
provide an objective independent review by audit of ON Semiconductor’s
financial statements and issuance of a report thereon. Their audit is
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America.

The audit committee of the board of directors, comprised solely of
outside directors, meets periodically and privately with the independent
accountants, internal auditors and representatives from management to
appraise the adequacy and effectiveness of the audit functions, control
systems and quality of our financial accounting and reporting.

Steve Hanson
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dario Sacomani
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of ON Semiconductor Corporation:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income, of stockholders’ equity (deficit) and of cash flows present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of ON Semiconductor
Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2000 and for the period from August 4, 1999 through
December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Phoenix, Arizona
February 1, 2001

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2000
1999
(in millions, except share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net (including $14.9 and $24.7 due from Motorola)
Inventories
Other current assets
Deferred income taxes

$ 188.9
271.2
258.1
39.6
40.7

$ 126.8
249.7
206.2
26.0
28.4

798.5
648.2
286.8
45.3
140.8
103.4

637.1
569.7
289.0
40.4
—
80.6

$2,023.0

$1,616.8

$ 175.0
184.3
22.3
17.9
5.6

$ 122.5
142.8
31.9
30.1
—

405.1
1,252.7
20.8

327.3
1,295.3
12.2

1,678.6

1,634.8

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 13)

—

—

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries

6.7

10.1

—

219.6

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Investments in joint ventures
Goodwill and other intangibles, net
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities, Minority Interests, Redeemable Preferred Stock and
Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Accounts payable (including $7.3 and $13.8 payable to Motorola)
Accrued expenses (including $8.3 and $8.2 payable to Motorola)
Income taxes payable
Accrued interest
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt (including $104.5 and $94.8 payable to Motorola)
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Redeemable preferred stock ($0.01 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 2,090 shares issued and outstanding
in 1999; 12% annual dividend rate; liquidation value—$209.0 plus $10.6 of accrued dividends in 1999)
Common stock ($0.01 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized, 172,746,435 and 136,666,666
shares issued and outstanding)
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Total liabilities, minority interests, redeemable preferred stock and stockholders’ equity (deficit)

1.7
730.4
(0.7)
(393.7)

1.4
204.2
2.7
(456.0)

337.7

(247.7)

$2,023.0

$1,616.8

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended
December 31, 2000

August 4 through
December 31, 1999

(in millions, except per share data)

Revenues:
Net product revenues (including $144.3 and $61.5 from Motorola)
Foundry revenues from Motorola

$2,012.2
61.7

$728.8
69.9

2,073.9
1,355.0

798.7
573.3

Gross profit

718.9

225.4

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles
Write-off of acquired in-process research and development
Restructuring charges

69.2
100.1
233.4
16.8
26.9
4.8

16.3
24.6
77.3
—
—
3.7

451.2

121.9

267.7

103.5

(131.2)
4.4

(55.9)
1.4

Total revenues
Cost of sales

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other income (expenses), net:
Interest expense
Equity in earnings of joint ventures

(126.8)

(54.5)

Income before income taxes, minority interests and extraordinary loss
Provision for income taxes
Minority interests

Other income (expenses), net

140.9
(50.1)
(2.2)

49.0
(18.1)
(1.1)

Net income before extraordinary loss
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment (net of income taxes of $11.7)

88.6
(17.5)

29.8
—

71.1
(8.8)

29.8
(10.6)

Net income
Less: Redeemable preferred stock dividends
Net income available for common stock
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Additional minimum pension liability
Comprehensive income (loss)
Earnings per common share:
Basic:
Net income before extraordinary loss
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment
Net income
Diluted:
Net income before extraordinary loss
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment
Net income
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

62.3

$ 19.2

$

71.1
(3.1)
(0.3)

$ 29.8
2.7
—

$

67.7

$ 32.5

$

0.50
(0.11)

$ 0.14
—

$

0.39

$ 0.14

$

0.49
(0.11)

$ 0.13
—

$

0.38

$ 0.13

160.2

136.7

165.6

144.6

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income/(Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

Total

136,666,666
—

$ 1.4
—

$ 203.6
—

$ —
—

$ (474.6)
(10.6)

$ (269.6)
(10.6)

—

—

0.6

—

(0.6)

—

—

—

—

—

29.8

29.8

—

—

—

2.7

—

2.7

—

—

—

2.7

—

32.5

136,666,666

1.4

204.2

2.7

(456.0)

(247.7)

34,500,000
601,646
—
—
—

0.3
—
—
—
—

514.4
0.9
3.3
0.7
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
(8.8)

514.7
0.9
3.3
0.7
(8.8)

978,123

—

6.9

—

—

6.9

—

—

—

—

71.1

71.1

—
—

—
—

—
—

(3.1)
(0.3)

—
—

(3.1)
(0.3)

—

—

—

(3.4)

—

67.7

172,746,435

$1.7

$730.4

$(0.7)

Common Stock
(Shares)
(in millions, except share data)

Shares issued in connection with
Recapitalization (see Note 1)
Redeemable preferred stock dividends
Stock options granted in connection with
the Recapitalization (see Note 10)
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Comprehensive income
Balances at December 31, 1999
Shares issued in connection
with initial public offering
Stock options exercised
Tax benefit of stock option exercises
Compensation expense—stock options
Redeemable preferred stock dividends
Shares issued under the employee
stock purchase plan
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Additional minimum pension liability
Comprehensive income (loss)
Balances at December 31, 2000

$(393.7)

$ 337.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

24 | 25

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended
December 31, 2000

August 4, 1999
through
December 31, 1999

(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Write-off of acquired in-process research and development
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Provision for doubtful accounts
Net (gain) loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment
Non-cash interest on junior subordinated note payable to Motorola
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures
Tax benefits of stock option exercises
Deferred income taxes
Non-cash compensation charges
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Accrued interest
Other long-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Investment in business, net of cash acquired
Investments in joint ventures and other
Acquisition of minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries
Loans to unconsolidated joint venture
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

$ 71.1

$

29.8

158.9
26.9
29.2
5.9
1.7
(1.5)
9.6
2.2
(4.4)
3.3
(11.6)
0.7

61.9
—
—
2.7
2.0
0.7
3.8
1.1
(1.4)
—
(17.6)
—

0.3
(33.1)
(25.2)
47.1
34.8
(8.1)
(12.2)
5.7

(238.4)
10.5
(2.0)
84.1
39.9
31.8
30.1
1.7

301.3

40.7

(198.8)
(253.2)
(2.5)
(1.5)
(30.0)
18.1

(64.0)
—
(4.9)
—
(28.3)
1.8

(467.9)

(95.4)
(continued on next page)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(continued from previous page)

Year ended
December 31, 2000

August 4, 1999
through
December 31, 1999

(in millions)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of offering expenses
Proceeds from borrowings
Payment of debt issuance costs
Repayment of senior credit facilities, including prepayment penalty
Repayment of senior subordinated notes, including prepayment penalty
Redemption of preferred stock, including accrued dividends
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under the employee stock purchase plan
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from issuance of common stock to an affiliate of Texas Pacific Group
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable preferred stock to
an affiliate of Texas Pacific Group
Proceeds from issuance of senior subordinated notes
Repayment of joint venture debt
Net cash payments to Motorola in connection with Recapitalization
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

514.8
226.1
(3.2)
(131.5)
(156.8)
(228.4)
6.9
0.9
—

—
800.5
(52.6)
—
—
—
—
—
187.5

—
—
—
—

150.0
400.0
(44.8)
(1,258.7)

228.8

181.9

(0.1)

(0.4)

62.1
126.8

126.8
—

$ 188.9

$ 126.8

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Background and Basis of Presentation

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

ON Semiconductor Corporation, together with its wholly- and majority-owned subsidiaries (the “Company”), is one of the largest independent
suppliers of semiconductor components in the world. Formerly known as
the Semiconductor Components Group of the Semiconductor Products
Sector of Motorola, Inc., the Company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Motorola Inc. (“Motorola”) prior to its August 4, 1999 recapitalization (the
“Recapitalization”). The Company holds and continues to hold, through
direct and indirect subsidiaries, substantially all the assets and operations
of the Semiconductor Components Group of Motorola’s Semiconductor
Products Sector.
On August 4, 1999, the Company was recapitalized and certain
related transactions were effected pursuant to an agreement among ON
Semiconductor Corporation, its subsidiary, Semiconductor Components
Industries, LLC (“SCI LLC”), Motorola and affiliates of Texas Pacific
Group. As a result of the Recapitalization, an affiliate of Texas Pacific
Group owned approximately 91% and Motorola owned approximately 9%
of the outstanding common stock of the Company. In addition, as part of
these transactions, Texas Pacific Group received 1,500 shares and
Motorola received 590 shares of the Company’s mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock with a liquidation value of $209 million plus accrued and
unpaid dividends. Motorola also received a $91 million junior subordinated note issued by SCI LLC. Cash payments to Motorola in connection
with the Recapitalization were financed through equity investments by
affiliates of Texas Pacific Group totaling $337.5 million, borrowings totaling $740.5 million under the Company’s $875 million senior bank facilities and the issuance of $400 million of 12% senior subordinated notes
due August 2009. Because Texas Pacific Group’s affiliate did not acquire
substantially all of the Company’s common stock, the basis of the
Company’s assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes was not
impacted by the Recapitalization.
On May 3, 2000, the Company completed the initial public offering
(“IPO”) of its common stock, selling 34.5 million shares with an issue
price of $16 per share. Net proceeds from the IPO (after deducting
issuance costs) were approximately $514.8 million. The net proceeds
were used to redeem all outstanding preferred stock (including accrued
dividends), redeem a portion of the senior subordinated notes and prepay
a portion of the loans outstanding under the senior bank facilities. In connection with this debt prepayment, the Company incurred prepayment
penalties and redemption premiums of $17.3 million and wrote off $11.9
million of debt issuance costs. These amounts, totaling $29.2 million
($17.5 million or $0.11 per share, net of income taxes), have been classified as an extraordinary loss in the accompanying consolidated statement
of operations and comprehensive income for 2000.

PRINCIPLES

OF

C O N S O L I DAT I O N

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and the majorityowned subsidiaries that it controls. An investment in a majority-owned
joint venture that the Company does not control as well as an investment
in a 50%-owned joint venture are accounted for on the equity method.
Investments in companies that represent less than 20% of the related voting stock are accounted for on the cost basis. All material intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated (see Note 5).
C A S H E Q U I VA L E N T S
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in,
first-out basis, or market.
P R O P E R T Y, P L A N T

AND

EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated over useful lives of 30-40 years for buildings and 3-20 years for
machinery and equipment using accelerated and straight-line methods.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations in the
year in which the expense is incurred.
I M PA I R M E N T

OF

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets for
impairment by measuring the carrying amount of the assets against the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows associated with them. In cases
where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying
value, an impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The fair value is determined
based on the present value of estimated expected future cash flows using
a discount rate commensurate with the risks involved.
D E B T I S S UA N C E C O S T S
In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company incurred $52.6
million in costs relating to the establishment of its senior bank facilities
and the issuance of its senior subordinated notes. During 2000, the
Company incurred $3.2 million in costs relating to additional borrowings
under its senior bank facilities (see Note 3). These costs have been capitalized and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
underlying agreements. Also during 2000, the Company utilized a portion

of the net proceeds from its IPO to redeem a portion of its senior subordinated notes and prepay a portion of the loans outstanding under its senior
bank facilities. In connection therewith, the Company wrote off $11.9 million of debt issuance costs (see Note 1). Other assets at December 31,
2000 and 1999 includes $36.1 and $50.2 million, respectively, of
unamortized debt issuance costs.
REVENUE RECOGNITION
Product revenues are recognized when title has transferred to the
buyer with provisions for anticipated returns and allowance also recorded
at that time. Foundry revenues which relate to services provided to
Motorola are recognized when the services have been complete.
RESEARCH

AND

DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.
S TO C K - BA S E D C O M P E N S AT I O N
The Company measures compensation expense relating to employee
stock awards in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”). The Company
measures compensation expense relating to non-employee stock awards in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”).
I N C O M E TA X E S
Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method.
Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which these temporary differences are expected to
be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets
that are not expected to be recovered from future operations.
FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The Company’s foreign subsidiaries utilize the U.S. dollar as their
functional currency, except for subsidiaries in Japan and Western Europe
where the local currency is used. For those subsidiaries which use the U.S.
dollar as the functional currency, the net effects of gains and losses from
foreign currency transactions and from the translation of foreign currency
financial statements into U.S. dollars are included in current operations.
The net translation gains and losses for subsidiaries using the local currency as the functional currency are included as foreign currency translation adjustments in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

EARNINGS

PER

COMMON SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income
available for common stock (net income less dividends accrued on the
Company’s redeemable preferred stock) by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
share incorporates the incremental shares issuable upon the assumed
exercise of stock options. The number of incremental shares from the
assumed exercise of stock options is calculated by applying the treasury
stock method. Earnings per share calculations for 2000 and the period
August 4, 1999 to December 31, 1999 are as follows (in millions,
except per share data):
2000

1999

Net income before extraordinary loss
Less: Redeemable preferred dividends

$ 88.6
(8.8)

$ 29.8
(10.6)

Net income before extraordinary loss
available for common stock
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment

79.8
(17.5)

19.2
—

Net income available for common stock

$ 62.3

$ 19.2

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding
Add: Dilutive effect of stock options

160.2
5.4

136.7
7.9

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding:

165.6

144.6

Earnings per share:
Basic:
Net income before extraordinary loss
available for common stock
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment

$ 0.50
(0.11)

$ 0.14
—

Net income available for common stock

$ 0.39

$ 0.14

Diluted:
Net income before extraordinary loss
available for common stock
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment

$ 0.49
(0.11)

$ 0.13
—

Net income available for common stock

$ 0.38

$ 0.13

STOCK SPLITS
In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company issued
100,000 shares of its $.01 par value common stock. The Company’s
Board of Directors subsequently approved a 2,049-for-1 stock split
effected in the form of a stock dividend. On February 17, 2000, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved a 2-for-3 reverse stock split.
Historical stockholders’ equity (deficit), share and per share amounts have
been retroactively restated to reflect these stock splits as of August 4,
1999. The par value of common stock has not been changed as a result of
these transactions.
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USE

OF

E S T I M AT E S

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
R E L AT E D I N T E R P R E TAT I O N S

AND

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 133”) which
establishes standards for the accounting and reporting for derivative
instruments, including derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and hedging activities. This statement generally requires recognition of gains and losses on hedging instruments based on changes in fair
value. SFAS 133, as amended by SFAS 137, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities—Deferral of the Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 133,” and SFAS 138, “Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” is effective for the
Company as of January 1, 2001.
The Company’s interest rate swaps in effect at January 1, 2000
have been designated as cash flow hedges, which will be measured at fair
value and recorded as assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet. The Company estimates that the adoption of SFAS 133 will require
an after-tax charge of approximately $3.4 million to accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) as of January 1, 2001. This charge consists of an approximate $2.1 million adjustment necessary to record the
Company’s interest rate swaps in the consolidated balance sheet at their
estimated fair values as well as the write-off of an approximate $3.5 million
deferred charge (included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2000) relating to the payment made
in December 2000 for the early termination of an interest rate protection
agreement which had been designated as a hedge for a portion of the
amounts outstanding under the Company’s senior bank facilities, both
before income taxes of approximately $2.2 million.
In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB 101”), “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements.” SAB 101 provides guidance on
the recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial
statements filed with the SEC and, as amended, became effective for the
Company in the fourth quarter of 2000 with effect from January 1, 2000.
The implementation of SAB 101 did not impact on the Company’s results
of operations.

In March 2000, the FASB issued Interpretation No.44, “Accounting
for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation—an interpretation of APB Opinion 25” (“FIN 44”). FIN 44 clarifies among other issues
(a) the definition of an employee in applying APB No. 25, (b) the criteria
for determining whether a plan qualifies as a noncompensatory plan,
(c) the accounting consequences of various modifications to the terms
of a previously fixed stock option award and (d) the accounting for an
exchange of stock compensation awards in a business combination.
The adoption of this interpretation did not impact the Company’s results
of operations.
Note 3: Acquisition
On April 3, 2000, the Company acquired all of the outstanding
capital stock of Cherry Semiconductor Corporation (“Cherry”) for
approximately $253.2 million in cash (including acquisition related
costs), which was financed with cash on hand and borrowings of $220.0
million under the Company’s senior bank facilities. Cherry, which was
renamed Semiconductor Components Industries of Rhode Island, Inc.,
designs and manufactures analog and mixed signal integrated circuits for
the power management and automotive markets, and had revenues for its
fiscal year ended February 29, 2000 of $129.1 million.
The Cherry acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting and, as a result, the purchase price and related
costs were allocated to the estimated fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the time of the acquisition based on independent
appraisals and management estimates as follows (in millions):
Fair value of tangible net assets
Developed technology
In-process research and development
Assembled workforce
Excess of purchase price over net assets acquired (goodwill)

$ 71.3
59.3
26.9
10.0
85.7
$253.2

Developed technology and assembled workforce are being amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of five years
while goodwill is being amortized over an estimated life of ten years.
Accumulated amortization of these intangible assets totaled $16.8 million
at December 31, 2000.
The fair value of the acquired in-process research and development
was determined using the income approach, which discounts expected
future cash flows to present value. Significant assumptions that had to be
made in using this approach included revenue and operating margin projections and determination of the applicable discount rate. The fair value
of the acquired in-process research and development was based on sales
forecasts and cost assumptions projected to be achievable by Cherry on
a stand-alone basis. Operating margins were based on cost of goods

sold and selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues. All projected revenue and cost information was based on historical results and trends and did not include any synergies or cost
savings that may result from the acquisition. The rate used to discount
future projected cash flows resulting from the acquired in-process
research and development was 20% which was derived from a
weighted average cost of capital analysis adjusted upward to reflect
additional risks inherent in the development life cycle.
At the date of acquisition, the in-process research and development
had not yet reached technological feasibility and no alternative future uses
had been identified. Accordingly, these costs were expensed as of the
acquisition date. The expected release dates for the products incorporating
the acquired technology vary, but the Company expects that such products will be completed and begin to generate cash flows in 2001. The ultimate development of these technologies remains a significant risk due to
the remaining efforts required to achieve technical viability, rapidly changing customer markets, uncertain standards for new products and significant competitive threats from numerous companies. The nature of the
efforts to develop the acquired technology into commercially viable products consists principally of design and development, engineering and
testing activities necessary to determine that the product can meet market
expectations, including functionality and technical requirements. Failure
to bring these products to market in a timely manner could result in a
loss of market share, or a lost opportunity to capitalize on emerging markets, and could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business and operating results.
The forecasts used in valuing the acquired in-process research and
development were based upon assumptions the Company believes are
reasonable; however, such assumptions may be incomplete or inaccurate,
and unanticipated events and circumstances are likely to occur. There can
be no assurance that the underlying assumptions used to estimate
expected project sales or profits, or the events associated with such projects, will transpire as estimated. For these reasons, actual results may
vary from the projected results.
Cherry’s results of operations have been included in the Company’s
consolidated results from the date of acquisition. The following pro forma
disclosures present the Company’s results of operations for 2000 as if the
Company had acquired Cherry as of January 1, 2000 (in millions, except
per share data):
(unaudited)

Total revenues
Net income before extraordinary loss
Net income
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinary loss
Diluted earnings per share

$2,110.3
85.4
67.9
$ 0.46
$ 0.35

These amounts include the results of Cherry for the first quarter of
2000 and are adjusted to reflect interest and amortization charges that
would have occurred had the purchase taken place on January 1, 2000.
The amounts are based upon certain assumptions and estimates, and do
not reflect any benefit from any cost savings, which might be achieved
from combined operations. The pro forma results are not indicative of the
actual results that would have occurred had the acquisition been consummated as of January 1, 2000.
Note 4: Balance Sheet Information
Balance sheet information is as follows (in millions):
December 31,
2000
1999
Receivables, net:
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Inventories:
Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods

Property, plant and equipment, net:
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Goodwill and other intangibles, net:
Developed technology
Assembled work force
Goodwill
Additional minimum pension liability

$ 274.3
(3.1)

$ 251.7
(2.0)

$ 271.2

$ 249.7

$

26.6
123.4
108.1

$ 25.6
103.8
76.8

$ 258.1

$ 206.2

$

13.6
319.0
1,264.0

$ 12.0
257.9
1,287.3

1,596.6
(948.4)

1,557.2
(987.5)

$ 648.2

$ 569.7

$

$

Total goodwill and other intangibles
Less: Accumulated amortization

59.3
10.0
85.7
2.6
157.6
(16.8)

$ 140.8

—
—
—
—
—
—

$

—

Depreciation expense totaled $135.8 million and $60.4 million
for 2000 and the period from August 4, 1999 to December 31, 1999,
respectively.
Note 5: Investments in Joint Ventures
The Company has interests in two joint ventures which are accounted
for using the equity method. The investment in each joint venture approximates the Company’s underlying equity interest in each joint venture.
Investments in these joint ventures totaled $45.3 and $40.4 million at
December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively, while the Company’s equity in
the related earnings totaled $4.4 million and $1.4 million for 2000 and
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for the period from August 4, 1999 through December 31, 1999, respectively. Summarized financial information for the joint ventures is as follows
(in millions):

Country location
Percentage ownership

LeshanPhoenix
Semiconductor
Ltd.

Semiconductor
Miniatures
Products
Malaysia

China
51%

Malaysia
50%

Total

As of December 31, 2000
Current assets
Noncurrent assets

$ 19.4
110.4

$ 21.8
115.1

$ 41.2
225.5

Total assets

$129.8

$136.9

$266.7

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Venture equity

$ 16.3
68.8
44.7

$ 12.7
97.9
26.3

$ 29.0
166.7
71.0

Total liabilities and equity

$129.8

$136.9

$266.7

As of December 31, 1999
Current assets
Noncurrent assets

$ 16.2
61.1

$ 15.0
109.0

$ 31.2
170.1

Total assets

$ 77.3

$ 124.0

$ 201.3

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Venture equity

$ 11.1
28.3
37.9

$ 37.8
45.1
41.1

$ 48.9
73.4
79.0

Total liabilities and equity

$ 77.3

$ 124.0

$ 201.3

$ 77.8
10.1
5.4

$101.1
10.3
2.7

$178.9
20.4
8.1

$ 16.3
2.2
(0.8)

$ 37.0
7.6
3.6

$ 53.3
9.8
2.8

Year ended December 31, 2000
Net sales
Gross profit
Net income
August 4, 1999 through
December 31, 1999
Net sales
Gross profit
Net income (loss)

In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company loaned
Leshan-Phoenix Semiconductor Ltd. (“Leshan”) $28.3 million to refinance
third-party non-recourse loans. During 2000, the Company loaned Leshan
an additional $30.0 million to finance facility expansion. The Company’s
loans to Leshan bear interest at 10.5%, payable quarterly, and are
included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
As part of the joint venture agreement for Semiconductor
Miniatures Products Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (“SMP”), the Company’s joint
venture partner, Philips Semiconductors International B.V. (“Philips”),
was provided the right to purchase the Company’s interest between
January 2001 and July 2002. On February 1, 2001, Philips exercised its
purchase right, acquiring the entire ownership interest in SMP held by
the Company. This transaction resulted in proceeds of approximately
$20.4 million and a pretax gain of approximately $3.2 million.

Note 6: Restructuring Charges
2000
In March 2000, the Company recorded a $4.8 million charge to
cover costs associated with a restructuring program at its manufacturing
facility in Guadalajara, Mexico. The charge included $3.2 million to cover
employee separation costs associated with the termination of approximately 500 employees and $1.6 million for asset impairments that were
charged directly against the related assets.
In September 2000, the Company completed a detailed evaluation of
the costs to be incurred to complete the March 2000 restructuring. Based
on this evaluation, the Company released $0.8 million of its remaining
restructuring reserve for employee separation costs to income as a credit
to restructuring charges in the consolidated statement of operations and
comprehensive income. Also in conjunction with this evaluation, the
Company recorded an additional charge of $0.8 million for asset impairments that were charged directly against the related assets. As of
December 31, 2000, the remaining liability relating to this restructuring
program was $0.7 million.
1999
In December 1999, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of
$11.1 million, including $3.5 million to cover employee separation costs
relating to approximately 150 employees at a manufacturing facility in
Mesa, Arizona that was closed in December as well as $7.6 million to
cover equipment write-downs at that facility and other non-cash business
exit costs that were charged directly against the related assets. As of
December 31, 2000, there was no remaining liability relating to the 1999
restructuring program.
1998
In June 1998, Motorola recorded a charge to cover restructuring
costs related to the consolidation of manufacturing operations, the exit of
non-strategic or poorly performing businesses and a reduction in worldwide employment by 20,000 employees. Asset impairment and other
charges were also recorded for the write-down of assets which became
impaired as a result of current business conditions or business portfolio
decisions. The Company’s charges related to these actions totaled $189.8
million and consisted of $13.2 million relating to the consolidation of
manufacturing operations in Arizona and the Philippines, $20.7 million
for costs relating to the exit of certain businesses, $102.0 million for separation costs associated with the planned reductions of 3,900 employees
and $53.9 million for asset impairments that were charged directly against
property, plant and equipment.

As of the date of the Recapitalization, the Company had spent
$92.8 million in connection with the related restructuring actions
including $3.8 million for the consolidation of manufacturing operations, $15.8 million for business exits and $73.2 million for employee
separations costs relating to approximately 3,000 employees. In connection with the Recapitalization, Motorola agreed to retain the remaining employee separation reserve of $28.8 million to cover approximately
900 employees who were to remain employees of and be released by
Motorola. At August 4, 1999, the Company had remaining reserves of
$9.4 million relating to the consolidation of manufacturing operations
and $4.9 million for business exits for a total restructuring reserve of
$14.3 million.
In December 1999, the Company completed a detailed evaluation of
the costs to be incurred to complete the remaining restructuring actions.
Based on this evaluation, the Company released $7.4 million of its remaining 1998 restructuring reserve to income as a credit to restructuring
charges in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
income. As of December 31, 2000, there was no remaining liability relating
to the 1998 restructuring program.

A summary of activity in the Company’s restructuring reserves is as
follows (in millions):
Balance, August 4, 1999
Plus: December 1999 employee separation charge
Less: Payments charged against the reserve
Less: Reserve released to income

$ 14.3
3.5
(0.9)
(7.4)

Balance, December 31, 1999
Plus: March 2000 employee separation charge
Less: Payments charged against the reserve
Less: Reserve released to income

9.5
3.2
(11.2)
(0.8)

Balance, December 31, 2000

$ 0.7

Restructuring charges are summarized as follows (in millions):
August 4, 1999
Year ended
through
December 31, December 31,
2000
1999
Reserve released to income
Restructuring charge (including
non-cash portion)

$(0.8)

$(7.4)

5.6

11.1

$ 4.8

$ 3.7

Note 7: Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following (dollars in millions):
December 31, 2000
Amount of Facility
Senior bank facilities:
Tranche A
Tranche B
Tranche C
Tranche D
Revolver
12% senior subordinated notes due 2009
10% junior subordinated note payable to Motorola due
2011 (including accrued interest of $13.5 and $3.8)
2.25% note payable due 2010 (Japan)
Less: Current maturities

$200.0
325.0
350.0
200.0
150.0

Interest Rate
9.438%
10.250%
10.500%
9.750%
—

Balance
$

18.4
314.0
338.2
198.7
—

December 31, 1999
Interest Rate

Balance

8.927%
9.313%
9.563%
—
—

$ 125.5
325.0
350.0
—
—

869.3
260.0

800.5
400.0

104.5
24.5
(5.6)

94.8
—
—

$1,252.7

$1,295.3
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Borrowings under the Tranche A, B, C and D facilities amortize
within six to eight years. The Tranche A facility includes a delayed-draw
facility of $134.5 million, of which $0 and $60.0 million had been borrowed as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Although no
amounts are outstanding under the Company’s revolving credit facility
as of December 31, 2000, the amount available has been reduced by
$13.5 million for letters of credit issued on behalf of the Company. The
Company is obligated to pay a fee for unutilized commitments at a rate of
.50% per annum. Prepayment of borrowings under the Tranche B and C
facilities require a premium of 2% of the principal amount prepaid prior
to August 4, 2000 and 1% of the principal amount prepaid during the
period from August 4, 2000 to August 4, 2001.
Except as discussed below, the senior subordinated notes may not
be redeemed prior to August 1, 2004. Redemption prices range from
106% of the principal amount if redeemed in 2004 to 100% if redeemed
in 2008 or thereafter. Up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
senior subordinated notes may be redeemed prior to August 4, 2002 with
the net cash proceeds of a public equity offering at a redemption price
equal to 112% of the principal amount redeemed.
On May 3, 2000 the Company completed the initial public offering
of its common stock. A portion of the net proceeds were used to redeem
$140 million of the senior subordinated notes and to prepay $131 million
of the loans outstanding under the senior bank facilities (see Note 1).
On October 27, 2000 the Company’s Japanese subsidiary borrowed
$26.1 million from a Japanese bank for expansion of facilities in Japan.
Interest is due semi-annually. The loan matures over ten years with semiannual principal payments commencing in 2003.
Interest on the senior subordinated notes is payable semi-annually.
Interest on the junior subordinated note compounds semi-annually, and is
due at maturity.
Borrowings under the senior bank facilities bear interest, payable
quarterly, at rates selected by the Company based on LIBOR or the alternate base rate defined in the related agreement plus a spread as follows:

Tranche A
Tranche B
Tranche C
Tranche D
Revolver

LIBOR

Alternate
Base Rate

+2.75%
+3.50%
+3.75%
+3.00%
+2.75%

+1.75%
+2.50%
+2.75%
+2.00%
+1.75%

The senior bank facilities as well as the senior subordinated notes
contain various covenants and restrictions, including restrictions on the
payment of dividends under certain circumstances, and require that substantially all of the Company’s assets be pledged as collateral.
Annual maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in millions):
Year ending December 31:
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
Thereafter

$

5.6
11.7
14.3
17.8
164.7
1,044.2

$1,258.3

In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company refinanced
third-party non-recourse loans of the majority-owned joint ventures located
in the Czech Republic totaling $44.8 million with intercompany loans.
In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company and SCI LLC,
its primary domestic operating subsidiary (collectively, the “Issuers”),
issued $400.0 million senior subordinated notes due 2009. As of
December 31, 2000, $260.0 million of the senior subordinated notes
were outstanding. The Company’s other domestic subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”) have jointly and severally, irrevocably and
unconditionally guaranteed the Issuers’ obligations under the senior subordinated notes. The Guarantor Subsidiaries include holding companies
whose net assets consist primarily of investments in the Company’s foreign
joint ventures in China, Malaysia and the Czech Republic and nominal
equity interests in certain of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries as well as
Semiconductor Components Industries of Rhode Island, Inc. The foreign
joint ventures and the Company’s foreign subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”) themselves are not guarantors of the senior
subordinated notes.

The Company does not believe that the separate financial statements and other disclosures concerning the Guarantor Subsidiaries provide any additional information that would be material to investors in making an investment decision. Condensed consolidating financial information for the Issuers, the
Guarantor Subsidiaries and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries is as follows (in millions):
Issuers
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2000
Receivables, net
Inventories
Other current assets

ON Semiconductor
Corporation
$

Total assets

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

$ 118.2
48.4
81.7

$ —
6.6
(0.4)

$ 153.0
261.6
179.7

—
—
—
—
429.4

248.3
157.5
278.1
—
340.8

6.2
52.4
14.2
140.8
57.8

594.3
438.5
(5.5)
—
5.6

$ 429.4

$1,024.7

$271.4

$1,032.9

$ (735.4)

$2,023.0

$

$

62.0
124.4

$ 7.0
10.4

$ 106.0
97.2

$

—
1.3

$ 175.0
230.1

—
(3.2)

$

Total

—
—
—

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill and other intangibles, net
Investments and other assets

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

SCI LLC

—
(58.5)
8.2

$ 271.2
258.1
269.2

(50.3)
(0.2)
—
—
(684.9)

798.5
648.2
286.8
140.8
148.7

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt (1)
Other long-term liabilities
Intercompany (1)

(3.2)
260.0
—
(165.1)

186.4
1,228.2
9.7
(782.6)

17.4
—
—
150.4

203.2
24.5
11.1
537.3

1.3
(260.0)
—
260.0

405.1
1,252.7
20.8
—

Total liabilities
Minority interests
Stockholders’ equity (deficit)

91.7
—
337.7

641.7
—
383.0

167.8
—
103.6

776.1
—
256.8

1.3
6.7
(743.4)

1,678.6
6.7
337.7

Liabilities, minority interests and stockholders’ equity (deficit)

$ 429.4

$1,024.7

$271.4

$1,032.9

$ (735.4)

$2,023.0

Revenues
Cost of sales

$

—
—

$2,245.8
1,765.6

$122.4
92.0

$2,504.5
2,256.4

$(2,798.8)
(2,759.0)

$2,073.9
1,355.0

Gross profit

—

480.2

30.4

248.1

(39.8)

718.9

Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles
Write-off of acquired in-process research and development
Restructuring charges

—
—
—
—
—
—

36.8
56.9
180.7
—
—
—

13.0
6.4
5.0
16.8
26.9
—

19.4
36.8
47.7
—
—
4.8

—
—
—
—
—
—

69.2
100.1
233.4
16.8
26.9
4.8

Total operating expenses

—

274.4

68.1

108.7

—

451.2

Operating income (loss)
Interest expense, net
Equity earnings

—
—
71.1

205.8
(78.5)
24.1

(37.7)
(14.3)
6.3

139.4
(38.4)
—

(39.8)
—
(97.1)

267.7
(131.2)
4.4

Income (loss) before taxes, minority interests
and extraordinary loss
Provision for income taxes
Minority interests
Extraordinary loss on debt prepayment (net of taxes)

71.1
—
—
—

151.4
(58.9)
—
(17.5)

(45.7)
20.8
—
—

101.0
(21.5)
—
—

(136.9)
9.5
(2.2)
—

140.9
(50.1)
(2.2)
(17.5)

75.0

$(24.9)

79.5

$ (129.6)

Net income (loss)

$ 71.1

$

$

$

71.1

(continued on next page)
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Issuers
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2000
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Investments in business, net of cash acquired
Investments in joint ventures and other
Acquisition of minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries
Loans to unconsolidated joint venture
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment

ON Semiconductor
Corporation
$

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of offering expenses
Proceeds from borrowings
Intercompany loans
Intercompany loan repayments
Payment of debt issuance costs
Repayment of senior credit facilities,
including prepayment penalty
Repayment of senior subordinated notes, including
prepayment penalty
Redemption of preferred stock, including accrued dividends
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and issuance of common stock
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

SCI LLC

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

—

$ 396.1

$ 8.9

$ (103.7)

—
—
—
—
—
—

(49.4)
(253.2)
(2.5)
—
(30.0)
4.8

(10.0)
—
—
—
—
—

—

(330.3)

—
—
—
—
—

$

Total

—

$ 301.3

(139.4)
—
—
(1.5)
—
13.3

—
—
—
—
—
—

(198.8)
(253.2)
(2.5)
(1.5)
(30.0)
18.1

(10.0)

(127.6)

—

(467.9)

514.8
200.0
(280.0)
41.5
(3.2)

—
—
—
—
—

—
26.1
280.0
(41.5)
—

—
—
—
—
—

514.8
226.1
—
—
(3.2)

—

(131.5)

—

—

—

(131.5)

—
—
—

(156.8)
(228.4)
7.8

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

(156.8)
(228.4)
7.8

—

(35.8)

—

264.6

—

228.8

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

—

—

—

(0.1)

—

(0.1)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

—
—

30.0
14.9

(1.1)
—

33.2
111.9

—
—

62.1
126.8

44.9

$ (1.1)

$ 145.1

—

$ 188.9

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

$

—

$

$

Issuers
As of December 31, 1999 and for the period from
August 4, 1999 to December 31, 1999
Receivables, net
Inventories
Other current assets

ON Semiconductor
Corporation
$

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

—
—
—

$ 89.5
106.0
37.7

$ —
—
—

$ 163.5
131.4
143.5

—
—
—
392.9

233.2
163.7
291.8
245.8

—
—
—
54.6

$ 392.9

$ 934.5

$

$

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Investments and other assets
Total assets

SCI LLC

—
—

(3.3)
(31.2)
—

$ 249.7
206.2
181.2

438.4
406.1
(2.8)
3.6

(34.5)
(0.1)
—
(575.9)

637.1
569.7
289.0
121.0

$ 54.6

$ 845.3

$ (610.5)

$1,616.8

58.4
99.1

$ 0.7
—

$

$

(9.9)
1.4

$ 122.5
204.8

73.3
104.3

$

Total

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt (1)
Other long-term liabilities
Intercompany (1)

—
400.0
—
21.0

157.5
1,295.3
2.6
(859.9)

0.7
—
—
—

177.6
—
9.6
466.3

(8.5)
(400.0)
—
372.6

327.3
1,295.3
12.2
—

Total liabilities
Minority interests
Redeemable preferred stock
Stockholders’ equity (deficit)

421.0
—
219.6
(247.7)

595.5
—
—
339.0

0.7
—
—
53.9

653.5
—
—
191.8

(35.9)
10.1
—
(584.7)

1,634.8
10.1
219.6
(247.7)

$ 392.9

$ 934.5

$ 54.6

$ 845.3

$ (610.5)

$1,616.8

$

—
—

$ 783.4
652.1

$ —
—

$ 538.0
443.9

$ (522.7)
(522.7)

$ 798.7
573.3

Gross profit

—

131.3

—

94.1

—

225.4

General and administrative
Other operating expenses

—
—

49.8
37.0

—
—

27.5
11.9

—
(4.3)

77.3
44.6

Total operating expenses

—

86.8

—

39.4

(4.3)

121.9

Operating income
Interest expense, net
Equity earnings

—
—
29.8

44.5
(38.8)
21.5

—
—
3.0

54.7
(17.1)
(0.0)

4.3
—
(52.9)

103.5
(55.9)
1.4

Income before taxes and minority interests
Provision for income taxes
Minority interests

29.8
—
—

27.2
(4.0)
—

3.0
—
—

37.6
(13.4)
—

(48.6)
(0.7)
(1.1)

49.0
(18.1)
(1.1)

23.2

$ 3.0

Liabilities, minority interests, redeemable preferred stock
and stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Revenues
Cost of sales

Net income

$ 29.8

$

$

24.2

$

(50.4)

$

29.8

(continued on next page)
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Issuers
As of December 31, 1999 and for the period from
August 4, 1999 to December 31, 1999

ON Semiconductor
Corporation

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Loans to unconsolidated joint venture
Investments in joint ventures and other
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment

$

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock to an affiliate of
Texas Pacific Group
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable preferred stock
to an affiliate of Texas Pacific Group
Proceeds from borrowings under senior credit facilities
Proceeds from issuance of senior subordinated notes
Payment of debt of issuance costs
Intercompany loans
Intercompany loan repayments
Repayment of joint venture debt
Net cash payments to Motorola in connection
with Recapitalization

SCI LLC

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations
$

Total

—

$ 137.5

$ 4.9

$ (101.7)

—

$

40.7

—
—
—
—

(1.8)
(28.3)
—
—

—
—
(4.9)
—

(62.2)
—
—
1.8

—
—
—
—

(64.0)
(28.3)
(4.9)
1.8

—

(30.1)

(4.9)

(60.4)

—

(95.4)

—

187.5

—

—

—

187.5

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

150.0
800.5
400.0
(52.6)
(290.3)
15.9
(44.8)

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
290.3
(15.9)
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

150.0
800.5
400.0
(52.6)
—
—
(44.8)

—

(1,258.7)

—

—

—

(1,258.7)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

—

(92.5)

—

274.4

—

181.9

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

—

—

—

(0.4)

—

(0.4)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

—
—

14.9
—

—
—

111.9
—

—
—

126.8
—

14.9

$ —

$ 111.9

—

$ 126.8

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

$

—

$

$

(1) For purposes of this presentation, the senior subordinated notes have been reflected in the condensed balance sheets of both the Company and SCI LLC with the appropriate offset reflected in the
eliminations column. Interest expense has been allocated to SCI LLC only.

Note 8: Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is as follows (in millions):

Geographic sources of income before income taxes, minority interests and extraordinary loss are as follows (in millions):
Year ended
December 31,
2000
United States
Foreign

August 4,
1999 through
December 31,
1999

$ 65.4
75.5

$10.8
38.2

$140.9

$49.0

Year ended
December 31,
2000
Current
Federal
State and local
Foreign

Deferred
Federal
State and local
Foreign

August 4,
1999 through
December 31,
1999

$ 37.1
4.6
20.0

$ 12.3
1.7
21.7

61.7

35.7

(8.8)
(1.2)
(1.6)

(7.9)
(1.1)
(8.6)

(11.6)

(17.6)

$ 50.1

$ 18.1

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate to the
Company’s effective income tax rate is as follows:
Year ended
December 31,
2000
U.S. federal statutory rate
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit
Foreign withholding taxes
Foreign rate differential
Other

August 4,
1999 through
December 31,
1999

35.0%

35.0%

2.8
2.0
(3.5)
(0.7)

1.1
1.4
(2.6)
2.1

35.6%

37.0%

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows (in millions):
December 31,
2000
1999
Tax-deductible goodwill
Reserves and accruals
Inventories
Fixed Assets
Other

$271.5
25.0
14.4
9.1
7.5

$297.6
16.8
7.3
(9.6)
5.3

$327.5

$317.4

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the Company
generating sufficient taxable income in the future. Based on the
Company’s history of profitable operations, management has concluded
that it is more likely than not that the Company will ultimately realize the
full benefit of its deferred tax assets. Accordingly, the Company has not
provided a valuation allowance for its net deferred tax assets.
Income taxes have not been provided in the U.S. on the Company’s
share ($139.5 million) of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries
over which it has sufficient influence to control the distribution of such
earnings and has determined that such earnings have been reinvested
indefinitely. These earnings could become subject to additional tax if they
were remitted as dividends, if foreign earnings were lent to any of the
Company’s U.S. subsidiaries or if the Company sells its stock in the subsidiaries. The Company estimates that repatriation of these foreign earnings would generate additional foreign tax withholdings of $12.2 million
and federal income tax, net of foreign tax credits, of $16.1 million.

Note 10: Stock Options
1999 FOUNDERS STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has adopted the ON Semiconductor 1999 Founders
Stock Option Plan (“the 1999 Plan”), an incentive plan for key employees,
directors and consultants. A total of 11,576,666 shares of the Company’s
common stock have been reserved for issuance under the 1999 Plan. The
1999 Plan is administered by the Board of Directors or a committee
thereof, which is authorized to, among other things, select the key employees, directors and consultants who will receive grants and determine the
exercise prices and vesting schedules of the options. Prior to the existence
of a public market for the Company’s common stock, fair market value was
determined by the Board of Directors.
Generally, the options vest over a period of four years, with approximately 8% becoming immediately vested and exercisable on the grant
date. All outstanding options vest automatically upon a change of control
(as defined in the plan), provided the option holder is employed by the
Company on the date of the change in control. Upon the termination of an
option holder’s employment, all unvested options will immediately terminate and vested options will generally remain exercisable for a period of 90
days after date of termination (one year in the case of death or disability).
2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
On February 17, 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan (“the 2000 Plan”) to provide key employees, directors and
consultants with various equity-based incentives as described in the plan
document. A total of 10.0 million shares of the Company’s common stock
have been reserved for grants under the 2000 Plan. The 2000 Plan is
administered by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof, which is
authorized to determine, among other things, the key employees, directors or consultants who will receive awards under the plan, the amount
and type of award, exercise prices or performance criteria, if applicable,
and vesting schedules.
At December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively, 6,596,326 and
1,475,348 of common stock were available for issuance under the plans.
Additional information with respect to stock option plan activity
is as follows:
Outstanding Options
Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

August 4, 1999
Grants

10,101,318

$ 1.50

December 31, 1999
Grants
Exercises
Cancellations

10,101,318
5,525,770
(601,646)
(646,748)

1.50
15.18
1.67
7.71

December 31, 2000

14,378,694

$ 6.46

Note 9: Redeemable Preferred Stock
In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company issued 2,090
shares of its 12% mandatorily redeemable preferred stock with an original
liquidation value of $209 million. Dividends on the preferred stock were
payable quarterly and compound to the extent not paid. The Company
redeemed all outstanding preferred stock with the net proceeds from the
Company’s initial public offering (see Note 1).
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The following tables summarize options outstanding and options
exercisable at December 31, 2000:
Outstanding Options

Range of
Exercise Prices

Number
of Shares

Weighted
Average
Contractual
Life (in years)

$ 1.50-$ 1.50
$ 9.03-$16.00
$17.37-$21.38

9,137,008
4,710,435
531,251

8.69
9.43
9.57

Totals

14,378,694

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$ 1.50
14.67
19.23

purchases of $25,000 under this plan. During 2000, employees purchased
978,123 shares under the plan. The Company has reserved 1.5 million
shares of common stock for issuance under this plan.
As permitted by SFAS 123, the Company measures compensation
expense in accordance with APB 25. Had the Company determined
compensation expense in accordance with SFAS 123, the Company’s
net income for 2000 and for the period from August 4, 1999 through
December 31, 1999 would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts
indicated below (in millions):

$ 6.46
Exercisable Options

Exercise Prices

Number
of Shares

Weighted
Average
Contractual
Life (in years)

$ 1.50
$16.00

2,258,574
324,391

8.69
9.32

Totals

2,582,965

Year ended
December 31,
2000

August 4,
1999 through
December 31,
1999

$71.1
63.7

$29.8
29.5

As reported
Pro forma

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$ 1.50
16.00

The fair value of options granted in 2000 and 1999 reported below
has been estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes optionpricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

$ 3.32

Employee Stock Options

2000

1999

Expected life (in years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility

5.00
6.41%
0.60

5.00
5.90%
0.00

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

2000

1999

Expected life (in years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility

.33
6.20%
0.60

n/a
n/a
n/a

These options will expire if not exercised at specific dates through
November 2010. Exercise prices for options exercised during 2000
ranged from $1.50 to $16.00.
During 2000, an employee of the Company was granted 80,000
stock appreciation rights with an option price of $16.00.
In 2000, the Company granted certain consultants options to purchase approximately 91,000 shares of common stock at exercise prices
ranging from $1.50 to $16.00 per share. The aggregate estimated fair
value of these options of $1.2 million is being recognized as expense
over the remaining service period of the respective consulting agreements. Compensation expense related to these stock options was
approximately $700,000.
In 1999, the Company paid its Chairman of the Board a consulting
fee of $100,000 and granted him an option to purchase 200,000 shares of
common stock for services rendered in connection with the Recapitalization.
Also in 1999, the Company paid an entity owned by one of its directors
a consulting fee of $1,750,000 and granted that director an option to
purchase 410,000 shares of common stock for services rendered in connection with the Recapitalization. The options, which have an exercise
price of $1.50 per share, were recorded as a charge to accumulated deficit
at their estimated fair value of $600,000.
2 0 0 0 E M P L OY E E S TO C K P U R C H A S E P L A N
On February 17, 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan. Subject to local legal requirements, each of the
Company’s full-time employees has the right to elect to have up to 10%
of their payroll applied towards the purchase of shares of the Company’s
common stock at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value of such
shares as determined under the plan. Employees will be limited to annual

The weighted average estimated fair value of employee stock options
granted during 2000 and 1999 was $8.04 and $0.39 per share, respectively. The weighted average estimated fair value of shares sold under the
2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan during 2000 was $3.73.
Note 11: Financial Instruments
As a multinational business, the Company’s transactions are denominated in a variety of currencies. When appropriate, the Company uses
forward foreign currency contracts to reduce its overall exposure to the
effects of currency fluctuations on its results of operations and cash flows.
The Company’s policy prohibits speculation on financial instruments,
trading in currencies for which there are no underlying exposures or
entering into trades for any currency to intentionally increase the underlying exposure.
The Company’s foreign exchange management strategy provides that
foreign subsidiaries provide forecasts of their foreign currency exposures.
The Company then aggregates the forecasted amounts and enters into foreign currency contracts in order to create an offset to the underlying exposures. Losses or gains on the underlying cash flows or investments offset
gains or losses on the financial instruments. The Company primarily
hedges existing assets and liabilities and cash flows associated with
transactions currently on its balance sheet.

At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company had net outstanding
foreign exchange contracts with notional amounts of $29.7 million and
$128.0 million, respectively. Most of the contracts, which were obtained
through Motorola, mature within two months with the longest maturity
extending eight months. Management believes that these financial instruments should not subject the Company to undue risk due to foreign
exchange movements because gains and losses on these contracts
should offset losses and gains on the assets, liabilities and transactions
being hedged. The following schedule shows the largest net foreign
exchange hedge positions in U.S. dollars as of December 31, 2000 and
1999 (in millions):
December 31,
2000
Buy (Sell)
Japanese Yen
Malaysian Ringgit
Euro
Mexican Peso
British Pound

December 31,
1999
Buy (Sell)

$(58.6)
19.4
6.6
1.5
(1.5)

$(94.0)
(18.0)
(19.0)
47.0
(24.0)

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses if counterparties to
financial instruments fail to perform their obligations. Motorola is the
counterparty for all of the Company’s foreign exchange contracts, and no
credit-related losses are anticipated. For 2000 and for the period August
4, 1999 to December 31, 1999 aggregate foreign currency transaction
gains totaled $6.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively.
At December 31, 2000, the Company had four interest rate swaps
which were entered into in August and December 2000. These derivatives,
required by the credit agreement relating to the senior bank facilities, are
floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps based on LIBOR with quarterly interest rate resets. Amounts to be paid or received under the contracts are
recorded as an adjustment to interest expense. The aggregate notional
amount of these swaps totals $255 million and is used solely as the basis
for which the payment streams are calculated and exchanged. The
notional amount is not a measure of the exposure to the Company
through the use of the swaps. The interest rate swaps expire during the
years 2002 through 2004.
At December 31, 2000, the Company had no outstanding commodity derivatives, currency swaps or options relating to either its debt instruments or investments. The Company does not have any derivatives to
hedge the value of its equity investments in affiliated companies.
Note 12: Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company uses the following methods to estimate the fair values
of its financial instruments:
CASH

AND

C A S H E Q U I VA L E N T S

LONG-TERM DEBT
The fair value of amounts outstanding under the Company’s senior
bank facilities approximate fair value because these borrowings have
variable interest rate terms. The fair values of the Company’s other longterm borrowings are determined by obtaining quoted market prices if
available or market prices for comparable debt instruments.
FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at current foreign
exchange rates for contracts with similar maturities.
I N T E R E S T R A T E S WA P A G R E E M E N T S
The fair values of interest rate swaps are the amounts at which they
could be settled and are estimated by obtaining quotes from brokers.
REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK
The fair value of the Company’s redeemable preferred stock was
determined using a discounted cash flow analysis, based on estimated
interest rates for similar preferred stock instruments.
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments at December 31, 2000 and 1999 are as follows (in millions):
2000
Carrying
Amount
Long-term debt
Forward foreign
exchange contracts
Interest rate swaps
Redeemable
preferred stock

1999

Fair Value

$(1,252.7) $(1,260.3)
5.8
—

5.8
(2.1)

—

—

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

$(1,295.3)

$(1,321.0)

(7.4)
—

(7.4)
—

(219.6)

(248.0)

Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies
LEASES
The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease obligations under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2000
(in millions):
Year ending December 31:
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
Thereafter

$10.7
9.7
6.7
3.6
2.5
8.8
$42.0

The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short-term
maturities of such instruments.
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The Company’s existing leases do not contain significant restrictive
provisions; however, certain leases contain renewal options and provisions for payment by the Company of real estate taxes, insurance and
maintenance costs. Total rent expense for 2000 and the period from
August 4, 1999 through December 31, 1999 was $13.0 and $7.0 million,
respectively.
L E G A L M AT T E R S
The Company is currently involved in a variety of legal matters that
arose in the normal course of business. Based on information currently
available, management does not believe that the ultimate resolution
of these matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Note 14: Employee Benefit Plans
PENSION PLANS
The Company has a noncontributory pension plan that, prior to its
amendment in November 1999, covered most U.S. employees who were
also formerly employees of Motorola, after one year of service. The benefit
formula is dependent upon employee earnings and years of service. The
Company’s policy is to fund the plan in accordance with the requirements
and regulations of the Internal Revenue Code. Benefits under the pension
plan are valued based upon the projected unit credit cost method.

In November 1999, the Company’s U.S. pension plan was amended
so that benefit accruals under the plan will be discontinued effective
December 31, 2004 for those employees whose combined age and years
of service (in complete years) equaled or exceeded 65 at August 4, 1999.
Benefit accruals under the plan for all other employees were discontinued
effective December 31, 2000. Employees will be entitled to redirect their
vested account balances into a qualified individual retirement account, the
Company’s defined contribution plans described below, an annuity contract or to receive a lump-sum distribution. This plan curtailment resulted
in a reduction in the plan’s benefit obligation of $12.6 million in 1999.
After recognition of the related unrecognized prior service cost and other
charges, the Company recognized a net curtailment gain of $0.5 million
during the period from August 4, 1999 through December 31, 1999.
The Company plans to terminate the U.S. pension plan, effective
April 15, 2001. The plan termination is subject to the approval of the
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, the government agency that
regulates plan terminations. The Company also anticipates seeking the
approval of the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the termination
of the plan. On the proposed termination date of April 15, 2001, the
Company intends to terminate the plan in a standard termination, which
requires plan assets be sufficient to provide all benefits for all participants
and beneficiaries of deceased participants.
Certain of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries provide retirement
plans for substantially all of their employees. The plans conform to local
practice in terms of providing minimum benefits mandated by law, collective agreements or customary practice. Benefits under all foreign pension
plans are valued using the projected unit credit cost method.

The following is a summary of the status of the pension plans and the net periodic pension cost (dollars in millions):
2000

Total

U.S.
Pension
Plan

Foreign
Pension
Plans

Total

$ 34.3
2.6
2.0
—
(2.5)
(0.7)
(2.9)

$ 101.4
7.3
6.5
—
2.2
(4.3)
(2.9)

$ 74.8
2.5
2.4
(12.6)
—
—
—

$ 30.2
1.1
0.8
—
—
(0.1)
2.3

$ 105.0
3.6
3.2
(12.6)
—
(0.1)
2.3

$ 77.4

$ 32.8

$ 110.2

$ 67.1

$ 34.3

$ 101.4

$ 61.8
2.3
—
(3.6)
—

$ 18.4
(1.0)
2.6
(1.0)
(0.9)

$ 80.2
1.3
2.6
(4.6)
(0.9)

$ 60.5
1.3
—
—
—

$ 13.5
0.3
3.4
(0.1)
1.3

$ 74.0
1.6
3.4
(0.1)
1.3

Fair value, end of period

$ 60.5

$ 18.1

$ 78.6

$ 61.8

$ 18.4

$ 80.2

Balances, end of period:
Pension benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

$ (77.4)
60.5

$ (32.8)
18.1

$(110.2)
78.6

$(67.1)
61.8

$(34.3)
18.4

$(101.4)
80.2

(16.9)
7.6
2.6

(14.7)
(0.7)
4.9

(31.6)
6.9
7.5

(5.3)
—
2.8

(15.9)
0.3
6.1

(21.2)
0.3
8.9

Net liability recognized, end of period

$ (6.7)

$ (10.5)

$ (17.2)

$ (2.5)

$ (9.5)

$ (12.0)

The net liability recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets consists of the following:
Accrued benefit liability
Intangible asset
Accumulated other comprehensive income

$ (9.6)
2.6
0.3

$ (10.5)
—
—

$ (20.1)
2.6
0.3

$ (2.5)
—
—

$ (9.5)
—
—

$ (12.0)
—
—

Net liability recognized, end of period

$ (6.7)

$ (10.5)

$ (17.2)

$ (2.5)

$ (9.5)

$ (12.0)

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of period
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan curtailment (gain)
Actuarial loss (gain)
Benefits paid
Translation loss (gain)
Benefit obligation, end of period
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value, beginning of period
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Translation gain (loss)

U.S.
Pension
Plan

Foreign
Pension
Plans

$ 67.1
4.7
4.5
—
4.7
(3.6)
—

1999

Funded status
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost

Assumptions related to the pension plans are as follows:
Discount rate
Expected return on assets
Rate of compensation increase
Components of net periodic pension cost:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Curtailment gain
Net periodic pension cost

6.8%
8.5%
5.0%

5.76%
7.46%
4.75%

6.8%
8.5%
5.0%

6.22%
5.15%
7.91%

$

4.7
4.5
(5.2)
0.2
—

$

2.6
2.0
(1.5)
0.6
—

$

7.3
6.5
(6.7)
0.8
—

$ 2.5
2.4
(2.4)
0.5
(0.5)

$ 1.0
0.8
(0.5)
0.2
—

$

3.5
3.2
(2.9)
0.7
(0.5)

$

4.2

$

3.7

$

7.9

$ 2.5

$ 1.5

$

4.0
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The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation
and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $107.5 million, $96.1
million and $76.5 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2000 and
$95.4 million, $80.3 million and $74.9 million, respectively, as of
December 31, 1999.
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS
The Company has a deferred compensation plan (“the Savings Plan”)
for all eligible U.S. employees established under the provisions of Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Eligible employees may contribute a
percentage of their salary subject to certain limitations. For the period from
August 4, 1999 through December 31, 1999, there were no Company
matching contributions to the Savings Plan; however, U.S. employees were
eligible for a profit sharing contribution. The Company recognized $1.3
million expense for the profit sharing feature of the Savings Plan for the
period from August 4, 1999 through December 31, 1999. No profit sharing
contribution was made for 2000. Effective January 1, 2000, the Company
began matching 100% of the first 4% of employee contributions, and 50%
of the next 4% of employee contributions, as defined in the Savings Plan.
The Company recognized $7.1 million of expense relating to matching
contributions in 2000. Participants are at all times fully vested in their
contributions and the Company’s contributions.
Certain foreign subsidiaries have defined contribution plans in
which eligible employees participate. The Company recognized compensation expense of $1.0 million and $0.4 million relating to these plans
during 2000 and the period from August 4, 1999 through December 31,
1999, respectively.
Note 15: Supplemental Disclosure of
Cash Flow Information
The Company’s non-cash financing activities and cash payments for
interest and income taxes are as follows (in millions):
Year ended
December 31,
2000
Non-cash financing activities:
Issuance of common stock to Motorola
Issuance of redeemable
preferred stock to Motorola
Issuance of junior subordinated
note to Motorola
Cash paid for:
Interest
Income taxes

$

Note 16: Related Party Transactions
In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company paid Texas
Pacific Group a financial advisory fee in the amount of $25.0 million. The
Company has also agreed to pay Texas Pacific Group an annual management fee of up to $2.0 million. In connection with the Cherry acquisition
in April 2000, the Company paid Texas Pacific Group a $2.0 million advisory fee in-lieu of the annual management fee for 2000. Management fees
payable to Texas Pacific Group for the period from August 4, 1999
through December 31, 1999 were $0.8 million and are included in general
and administrative expense.
In connection with the Recapitalization, Motorola assigned, licensed
and sublicensed to the Company intellectual property in connection with
the products the Company plans to offer (including a limited use of the
Motorola trade name for one year and a transition statement, “formerly a
division of Motorola,” for an additional year thereafter). In addition,
Motorola has agreed to continue providing information technology,
human resources, supply management, logistics and finance services for
agreed upon periods of time while the Company determines the most
cost-effective means to obtain such services. Motorola has also agreed to
continue providing manufacturing and assembly services, to continue
using similar services the Company provides to them, to continue selling
to the Company depreciated equipment to support the Company’s capacity
expansion and to lease real estate to the Company.
The manufacturing and assembly services that the Company and
Motorola have agreed to continue to provide to each other are at prices
intended to approximate each party’s cost of providing the services and
are fixed throughout the term of the agreements. Subject to the Company’s
right to cancel upon six months’ written notice, the Company has minimum commitments to purchase manufacturing services from Motorola of
approximately $51 million, $41 million and $40 million in years 2001,
2002 and 2003, respectively.
Related party activity between the Company and Motorola is as
follows (in millions):

August 4,
1999 through
December 31,
1999

—

$17.5

—

59.0

—

91.0

131.2
54.2

20.7
5.9

Year ended
December 31,
2000
Purchases of manufacturing
services from Motorola
Cost of other services, rent and equipment
purchased from Motorola

August 4,
1999 through
December 31,
1999

$162.3

$101.3

96.0

21.2

Note 17: Segment Information

Total revenues to unaffiliated customers by geographic location,
including local sales and exports made by operations within each area are
summarized as follows (in millions):

The Company is engaged in the design, development, manufacture
and marketing of a wide variety of semiconductor components for the
semiconductor industry and original equipment manufacturers and operates in one segment. The Company operates in various geographic locations. Sales to unaffiliated customers have little correlation with the
location of manufacture. It is, therefore, not meaningful to present operating profit by geographic location. The Company conducts a substantial
portion of its operations outside of the United States and is subject to risks
associated with non-U.S. operations, such as political risks, currency controls and fluctuations, tariffs, import controls and air transportation.
Property, plant and equipment by geographic location is summarized
as follows (in millions):

Year ended
December 31,
2000
The Americas (primarily the U.S. and Mexico)
Asia/Pacific
Europe
Japan

$275.9
171.1
103.0
98.2

$221.4
159.7
89.0
99.6

$648.2

$569.7

$ 965.1
551.5
414.8
142.5

$375.4
183.6
144.9
94.8

$2,073.9

$798.7

Sales to Motorola and two other customers accounted for approximately 10%, 11% and 12%, respectively, of the Company’s total revenue
during 2000, compared to approximately 16%, 10% and 9%, respectively, of the Company’s total revenue for the period from August 4, 1999
to December 31, 1999.

December 31,
2000
1999
The Americas (primarily the U.S. and Mexico)
Asia/Pacific
Europe
Japan

August 4,
1999 through
December 31,
1999

Note 18: Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited):
Consolidated quarterly financial information for 2000 and for the period from August 4, 1999 through December 31, 1999 follows (in millions, except
per share data):
2000
Quarter ended
Total revenues
Gross profit
Net income before extraordinary loss
Net income (loss)
Diluted net income (loss) before extraordinary item per common share
Diluted net income (loss) per common share

(1)

1999

April 1

July 1

September 30

December 31

October 2

$486.8
163.4
25.5
$ 25.5
$ 0.13
$ 0.13

$550.5
192.8
15.5
$ (2.0)
$ 0.08
$ (0.03)

$543.2
194.0
29.9
$ 29.9
$ 0.17
$ 0.17

$493.4
168.7
17.7
$ 17.7
$ 0.10
$ 0.10

$329.0
88.2
10.8
$ 10.8
$ 0.04
$ 0.04

(2)

December 31
$469.7
137.2
19.0
$ 19.0
$ 0.09
$ 0.09

(1) During the quarter ended July 1, 2000 the Company incurred a pre-tax charge of $26.9 million relating to the write-off of in-process research and development relating to the Cherry acquisition
described in Note 3. Additionally, the Company incurred a charge of $29.2 million ($17.5 million after tax) relating to prepayment penalties, redemption premiums and the write-off of debt issuance
costs. As described in Note 1, this charge was treated as an extraordinary loss in the accompanying financial statements.
(2) Includes the period from August 4, 1999 to October 2, 1999.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Motorola, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying combined statements of revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes for Semiconductor
Components Group of Motorola, Inc. (“the Company” or “the Business”)
for the period from January 1, 1999 through August 3, 1999 and the year
ended December 31, 1998. These combined statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these combined statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
The accompanying combined statements were prepared to comply
with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and on the basis of presentation as described in Note 1. The accompanying combined statements present the combined revenues less direct and

allocated expenses before taxes of the Business, and are not intended to be
a complete presentation of the Business’ financial position, results of operations or cash flows. The results of operations before taxes are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations before taxes that would be
recorded by the Company on a stand-alone basis.
In our opinion, the accompanying combined statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the combined revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes for the period from January 1, 1999 through
August 3, 1999 and the year ended December 31, 1998, on the basis
described in Note 1, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Phoenix, Arizona
January 7, 2000

Semiconductor Components Group of Motorola, Inc.

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES LESS DIRECT AND
ALLOCATED EXPENSES BEFORE TAXES
Period from
January 1,
1999 through
August 3,
1999

Year ended
December 31,
1998

$895.4
91.0

$1,495.3
162.3

Total revenues

986.4

1,657.6

Direct and allocated costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Restructuring and other charges

711.3
34.3
39.0
89.4
—

1,222.3
67.5
92.4
205.7
189.8

874.0

1,777.7

112.4

(120.1)

2.4
(9.1)
(0.9)

5.7
(19.8)
(2.1)

(7.6)

(16.2)

$104.8

$ (136.3)

(in millions)

Revenues:
Net sales—trade
Foundry revenues

Operating costs and expenses

Other income (expenses):
Equity in earnings from joint ventures
Interest expense
Minority interest in earnings of consolidated entities
Other expenses, net
Revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes
See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.
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Semiconductor Components Group of Motorola, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Basis of Presentation
The Semiconductor Components Group (“SCG” or “the Business”)
is defined as the discrete and integrated circuits standard products of the
Semiconductor Products Sector (“SPS”) of Motorola, Inc. (“Motorola”),
including Power BiPolar, Rectifiers, Thyristors, Zeners, TMOS, Analog,
ECL, Small Signal and Logic Products. Manufacturing operations for the
Business are primarily conducted in plants in Guadalajara, Mexico,
Carmona, Philippines, Seremban, Malaysia (2 Plants), Phoenix, Arizona,
United States and Aizu, Japan (collectively referred to as “SCG plants”).
Certain manufacturing operations related to SCG products are also performed at other SPS plants. Similarly, certain SCG plants perform manufacturing operations related to other SPS product lines. SCG also has
investments in various joint ventures which are accounted for on the
equity method.
Motorola performs cash management on a centralized basis and
SPS processes receivables and certain payables, payroll and other activity
for SCG. Most of these systems are not designed to track receivables, liabilities and cash receipts and payments on a business specific basis.
Accordingly, it is not practical to determine certain assets and liabilities
associated with the business. Given these constraints, certain supplemental cash flow information is presented in lieu of a statement of cash flows.
(See Note 6.) Assets and liabilities not specifically identifiable to the
Business include:
(A) Cash, cash equivalents and investments. Activity in SCG cash balances is recorded through the business equity account.
(B) Trade accounts receivable and related allowances for bad debts and
product returns. Trade receivable balances are maintained by customer, not by the Business. Estimated allowances for product
returns are reflected in SCG net sales. Accounts receivable related
to SCG are allocated through the business equity account.
(C) Accounts payable related to trade purchases that are made centrally
by SPS in the United States. Such purchases related to SCG are
allocated to SCG through the business equity account.
(D) Certain accrued liabilities for allocated corporate costs and environmental and pension costs which are allocated to SCG through
the business equity account.
The combined statements of revenues less direct and allocated
expenses before taxes include all revenues and costs attributable to the
Business including an allocation of the costs of shared facilities and overhead of Motorola and SPS. In addition, certain costs incurred at SCG
plants for the benefit of other SPS product lines are allocated from SCG to
the other SPS divisions.
All of the allocations and estimates in the combined statements of
revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes are based on
assumptions that management believes are reasonable under the circumstances. However, these allocations and estimates are not necessarily
indicative of the costs that would have resulted if the Business had been
operated on a stand-alone basis.

Transactions between the Business and other Motorola and SPS
operations have been identified in the combined statements as transactions between related parties to the extent practicable (See Note 2).
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(A) BASIS

OF

C O M B I NAT I O N

All significant intercompany balances and transactions within the
Business have been eliminated.
(B) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenues from the sale of SCG semiconductor products is generally
recognized when shipped, with a provision for estimated returns and
allowances recorded at the time of shipment.
( C ) R E L AT E D PA R T Y T R A N S AC T I O N S
SCG manufactures products for other sectors of Motorola. Sales of
these products are treated as external sales and are reflected in the
accompanying combined statements of revenues less direct and allocated
expenses before taxes with the related cost of sales. These sales totaled
$76.1 million for the period from January 1, 1999 through August 3, 1999
and $105.7 million for the year ended December 31, 1998.
SCG also manufactures products, at cost, for other SPS divisions
and these other divisions also manufacture products for SCG. The gross
amounts charged to/from SCG for these products are summarized as
follows (in millions):
January 1,
1999 through
August 3,
1999

Year ended
December 31,
1998

Manufacturing services performed by other
SPS divisions on behalf of SCG

$125.5

$266.8

Manufacturing services performed by SCG and
and transferred at actual production costs to
other SPS divisions

$ 91.0

$162.3

A portion of manufacturing costs transferred from other SPS divisions to SCG are capitalized into inventory at worldwide standard cost
and are recorded as cost of sales as related product sales are recognized.
Variations between worldwide standard cost and the actual costs transferred from other SPS divisions are considered period costs and are
immediately charged to operations.
Where it is possible to specifically identify other operating costs with
the activities of SCG or other SPS product lines, these amounts have been
charged or credited directly to SCG or SPS product lines without allocation
or apportionment. Although a number of different approaches are used to
allocate shared or common costs, there is usually a predominant basis for
each expense category. Accordingly, research and development costs have
been allocated from SPS based predominately on dedicated spending.
Research and development from Motorola is first allocated to SPS and

then allocated 20% to SCG as SCG is one of five divisions within SPS.
Selling and marketing expenses from SPS have been allocated 20% to
SCG and general and administrative expenses from Motorola and SPS
have been allocated 20% to SCG. Prior to changing to this allocation
structure in July, 1997, allocations to SCG for research and development,
selling and marketing, and general and administrative expenses were
based on budgeted sales volume. This change had an insignificant impact
on the amount of the allocated costs.
Total amounts allocated to SCG for research and development, selling
and marketing, and general and administrative expenses were as follows
(in millions):
January 1,
1999 through
August 3,
1999

Year ended
December 31,
1998

Research and development

$13.3

$ 33.1

Selling and marketing

$ 2.2

$ 3.7

General and administrative

$50.0

$115.2

These cost allocations are included in the accompanying combined
statements of revenues less direct and allocated expenses before taxes but
are not necessarily indicative of the costs that would be incurred by the
Business on a stand-alone basis.
(D) INTEREST EXPENSE
Motorola had net interest expense on a consolidated basis for all
periods presented. These amounts have been allocated to SPS and in turn
to SCG in the amount of approximately $7.5 million for the period from
January 1, 1999 through August 3, 1999 and $18.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 1998, primarily on the basis of net assets. SCG
management believes this allocation is reasonable, but it is not necessarily indicative of the cost that would have been incurred if the Business had
been operated on a stand-alone basis.
(E) CURRENCIES AND FOREIGN CURRENCY
INSTRUMENTS
SCG’s functional currency for all foreign operations is the U.S. dollar, except for Japan and Europe which is the local currency. Accordingly,
the net effect of gains and losses from translation of foreign currency
financial statements into U.S. dollars is included in current operations.
The net translation gains and losses for Japan and Europe are not significant and are included as a component of business equity. Gains and
losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in current
operations and were not significant for 1998 or the period from January 1,
1999 through August 3, 1999.

( F ) U S E O F E S T I M AT E S I N P R E PA R AT I O N
F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

OF

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
(3) Employee Benefit Plans
Employees of SCG participate in several Motorola retirement,
employee benefit and incentive plans. These include (1) a profit sharing
plan, (2) a stock bonus plan, (3) a salary deferral 401(k) plan and (4) pension and healthcare benefit plans. Motorola also has a stock option plan
under which key employees of SCG may be granted nonqualified or
incentive stock options to purchase shares of Motorola common stock.
Certain key employees and certain management of SCG also participate in
various incentive arrangements based on individual performance and
Motorola/SPS/SCG profitability. The costs of these programs were allocated from Motorola to SPS and then to SCG on the basis of payroll costs
and headcount and are not necessarily indicative of the costs that would
be incurred on a stand-alone basis.
SCG employees in foreign countries participate in a retirement plan
within the country. In each case, the plan meets local and legal requirements of that particular country and is based on defined years of service.
Each country’s plan is unfunded and is accrued based on actuarially
determined amounts.
(4) Contingencies
Motorola is currently a defendant in certain legal actions relating to
SCG. In the opinion of management, the outcome of such litigation will not
have a material adverse effect on the business equity, operations or liquidity
of SCG.
Motorola is also involved in certain administrative and judicial proceedings related to certain environmental matters at SCG locations. Based
on information currently available, management believes that the costs of
these matters are not likely to have a material adverse effect on business
equity, operations or liquidity of SCG.
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(5) Business Equity

(7) Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Business equity represents Motorola’s ownership interest in the
recorded net assets of SCG. All cash transactions, accounts receivable,
accounts payable in the United States, other allocations and intercompany transactions are reflected in this amount. A summary of activity
is as follows (in millions):

As described in Note 1, Motorola’s cash management system is not
designed to track centralized cash and related financing transactions to
the specific cash requirements of the Business. In addition, SPS’s transaction systems are not designed to track receivables and certain liabilities
and cash receipts and payments on a business specific basis. Given these
constraints, the following data are presented to facilitate analysis of key
components of cash flow activity (in millions):

January 1,
1999 through
August 3,
1999

Year ended
December 31,
1998

Balance and beginning of period
Revenues less direct and allocated expenses
before taxes
Net intercompany activity

$681.0

$ 866.4

104.8
(83.9)

(136.3)
(49.1)

Balance at end of period

$701.9

$ 681.0

(6) Industry and Geographic Information
The Business operates in one industry segment and is engaged in
the design, development, manufacture and marketing of a wide variety of
semiconductor products for the semiconductor industry and original
equipment manufacturers. SCG operates in various geographic locations.
In the information that follows, sales include local sales and exports
made by operations within each area. To control costs, a substantial portion of SCG’s products are transported between various SCG and SPS
facilities in the process of being manufactured and sold. Accordingly, it
is not meaningful to present interlocation transfers between SCG facilities
on a stand-alone basis. Sales to unaffiliated customers have little correlation with the location of manufacture. It is, therefore, not meaningful to
present operating profit by geographical location.
SCG conducts a substantial portion of its operations outside of the
United States and is subject to risks associated with non-U.S. operations,
such as political risks, currency controls and fluctuations, tariffs, import
controls and air transportation.
Sales to unaffiliated customers by geographic location is summarized
as follows (in millions):

United States
Germany
Hong Kong
Japan
Singapore
Taiwan
Other foreign countries
Total

January 1,
1999 through
August 3,
1999

Year ended
December 31,
1998

$465.0
61.2
78.0
76.7
75.1
33.9
196.5

$ 798.7
108.0
107.4
127.4
98.2
71.0
346.9

$986.4

$1,657.6

As discussed in Note 2, sales to other sectors of Motorola are
treated as sales to unaffiliated customers.

Operating activities:
Revenues less direct and allocated
expenses before taxes
Depreciation
Impairment write-down on
property, plant and equipment
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Decrease in other current assets
Increase in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts
payable and accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in non-current liabilities
Cash flow from operating activities, excluding
Motorola financing and taxes
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures, net of transfers
Net financing provided to Motorola*

January 1,
1999 through
August 3,
1999

Year ended
December 31,
1998

$104.8
77.4

$(136.3)
133.9

—
(27.5)
2.2
(12.2)

53.9
30.4
(4.4)
0.7

(23.6)
2.4

84.4
6.4

123.5

169.0

(39.6)

(119.9)

$ 83.9

$ 49.1

* The difference between cash flow from operating activities and investing activities does not
necessarily represent the cash flows of the Business, or the timing of such cash flows, had it
operated on a stand-alone basis.

(8) Restructuring and Other Charges
In June 1998, Motorola recorded a charge to cover restructuring
costs related to the consolidation of manufacturing operations, the exit of
non-strategic or poorly performing businesses and a reduction in worldwide employment by 20,000 employees. Asset impairment and other
charges were also recorded for the write-down of assets which had
become impaired as a result of current business conditions or business
portfolio decisions. Motorola recorded its charge in the following
restructuring categories:
C O N S O L I DAT I O N

OF

M A N U FAC T U R I N G O P E R AT I O N S

Consolidation of manufacturing operations relates to the closing of
production and distribution facilities and selling or disposing of the
machinery and equipment that was no longer needed and, in some cases,
scrapping excess assets that had no net realizable value. The buildings
associated with these production facilities, in many cases were sold to
outside parties. Also included in this restructuring category were costs

related to shutting down or reducing the capacity of certain production
lines. In most cases, older facilities with older technologies or non-strategic products were closed. Machinery and equipment write-downs related
to equipment that would no longer be utilized comprised the majority of
these costs. These assets have been deemed to be held for use until such
time as they are removed from service and, therefore, no longer utilized in
manufacturing products. An assessment was made as to whether or not
there was an asset impairment related to the valuation of these assets in
determining what the amount of the write-down included in the restructuring charge should be for this machinery and equipment. This assessment
utilized the anticipated future undiscounted cash flows generated by the
equipment as well as its ultimate value upon disposition.
The charges in this restructuring category do not include any
costs related to the abandonment or sub-lease of facilities, moving
expenses, inventory disposals or write-downs, or litigation or environmental obligations.
As part of the consolidation of manufacturing operations, certain
SPS facilities in North Carolina, California, Arizona and the Philippines
are being closed as planned. SPS is consolidating its production facilities
into fewer integrated factories to achieve economies of scale and
improved efficiencies and to capitalize on new technologies that should
reduce operating costs.
BUSINESS EXITS
Business exit costs include costs associated with shutting down
businesses that did not fit with Motorola’s new strategy. In many cases,
these businesses used older technologies that produced non-strategic
products. The long-term growth and margins associated with these businesses were not in line with Motorola’s expectations given the level of
investment and returns. Included in these business exit costs were the
costs of terminating technology agreements and selling or liquidating
interests in joint ventures that did not fit with the new strategy of
Motorola. Similar to consolidation of manufacturing operations, the
charges in this restructuring category did not include any costs related to
the abandonment or sublease of facilities, moving expenses, inventory
disposals or write-downs, or litigation or environmental obligations.

voluntary termination benefits expired at the end of the Company’s fourth
quarter of 1998.
As of December 31, 1998, approximately 13,800 employees have
separated from Motorola through a combination of voluntary and involuntary severance programs. Of the 13,800 separated employees, approximately 8,200 were direct employees and 5,600 were indirect employees.
Direct employees are primarily non-supervisory production employees,
and indirect employees are primarily non-production employees and production managers.
A S S E T I M PA I R M E N T S

AND

OTHER CHARGES

As a result of current and projected business conditions, Motorola
wrote down operating assets that became impaired. The majority of the
assets written down were used manufacturing equipment and machinery.
The amount of impairment charge for the assets written down was
based upon an estimate of the future cash flows expected from the use of
the assets, as well as upon their eventual disposition. These undiscounted
cash flows were then compared to the net book value of the equipment,
and impairment was determined based on that comparison. Cash flows
were determined at the facility level for certain production facilities based
upon anticipated sales value of the products to be produced and the costs
of producing the products at those facilities. In cases in which sufficient
cash flows were not going to be generated by the equipment at those
facilities, the assets were written down to their estimated fair value. These
estimated fair values were based upon what the assets could be sold for in
a transaction with an unrelated third party. Since the majority of these
assets were machinery and equipment, Motorola was able to utilize current market prices for comparable equipment in the marketplace in
assessing what would be the fair value upon sale of the equipment.
Building write-downs were based on marketability factors of the
building in the particular location.
Assets held for use continue to be depreciated based on an evaluation of their remaining useful lives and their ultimate values upon disposition. There were no assets held for sale at December 31, 1998 nor were
any impaired assets disposed of prior to that date.
SCG’S RESTRUCTURING CHARGE

E M P L OY E E S E PA R AT I O N S
Employee separation costs represent the costs of involuntary severance benefits for the 20,000 positions identified as subject to severance
under the restructuring plan and special voluntary termination benefits
offered beginning in the third quarter of 1998. The special voluntary termination benefits provided for one week of pay for each year of service
between years 1-10, two weeks of pay for each year of service between
years 11-19, and three weeks of pay for each year of service for year 20
and greater. The majority of employees who accepted special voluntary
termination benefits did so by the end of the year, although severance
payments were not completed by that time. The majority of the special

SCG’s charges related to these actions were $189.8 million of
which $53.9 million represented asset impairments charged directly
against machinery and equipment. SCG’s employment reductions will
total approximately 3,900 of which approximately 3,000 (1,800 direct
employees and 1,200 indirect employees) had separated from SCG as
of August 3, 1999.
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At December 31, 1998, $68.0 million of restructuring accruals
remain outstanding. The following table displays a rollforward to
December 31, 1998 of the accruals established during the second quarter
of 1998:
(in millions)

Initial
Charges

Amounts
Used

Accruals at
December 31,
1998

Consolidation of manufacturing
operations
Business exits
Employee separations

$ 13.2
20.7
102.0

$ —
9.4
58.5

$13.2
11.3
43.5

135.9

67.9

68.0

Total restructuring
Asset impairments and other charges
Total

53.9

53.9

—

$189.8

$121.8

$68.0

SCG’s remaining accrual at December 31, 1998 of $13.2 million for
the consolidation of manufacturing operations represents the finalization
of the plant closings in Arizona and the Philippines. Within the business
exits category, the remaining accrual of $11.3 million at December 31,
1998 relates to costs of exiting two unprofitable product lines. SCG’s
remaining accrual of $43.5 million at December 31, 1998 for employee
separations relates to the completion of severance payments in Japan,
Asia, the U.K. and Arizona.
SCG’s total amount used of $121.8 million through December 31,
1998 reflects approximately $63.6 million in cash payments and $58.2
million in write-offs. The remaining $68.0 million accrual balance at
December 31, 1998 is expected to be liquidated via cash payments.
At August 3, 1999, $43.1 million of restructuring accruals remain
outstanding. The following table displays a rollforward from December 31,
1998 to August 3, 1999, of the accruals established during the second
quarter of 1998:
(in millions)

Consolidation of manufacturing
operations
Business exits
Employee separations
Total restructuring
Asset impairments and other charges
Total

Accruals at
December 31,
1998

1999
Amounts
Used

Accruals at
August 3,
1999

$13.2
11.3
43.5

$ 3.8
6.4
14.7

$ 9.4
4.9
28.8

68.0

24.9

43.1

—

—

—

$68.0

$24.9

$43.1

SCG’s remaining accrual at August 3, 1999 of $9.4 million for the
consolidation of manufacturing operations represents the finalization of
the plant closings in Arizona and the Philippines. Within the business
exits category, the remaining accrual of $4.9 million at August 3, 1999
relates to costs of exiting two unprofitable product lines. SCG’s remaining
accrual of $28.8 million at August 3, 1999 for employee separations
relates to the completion of severance payments in Japan, Asia, the U.K.
and Arizona. Motorola retained the employee separation accrual of $28.8
million as of August 3, 1999, to cover approximately 900 employees who
will remain employees of, and be released by Motorola.
SCG’s total 1999 amount used of $24.9 million through August 3,
1999 reflects cash payments. The remaining $43.1 million accrual balance at August 3, 1999 is expected to be liquidated via cash payments.

(9) Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures
SCG participates in joint ventures in China and Malaysia. The joint
ventures have been accounted for using the equity method. The investment in each joint venture approximates the underlying equity interest
of such joint venture. Earnings from these joint ventures totaled $2.4 million for the period from January 1, 1999 through August 3, 1999 and
$5.7 million for the year ended December 31, 1998.

Joint Venture
(in millions)

LeshanPhoenix
Semiconductor
Ltd.

Semiconductor
Miniature
Products
Malaysia

China
55%

Malaysia
50%

$21.5
$ 6.5
$ 5.6
$ 5.6

$56.7
$20.3
$ 5.6
$ 5.3

$78.2
$26.8
$11.2
$10.9

$15.0
$ 5.7
$ 4.4
$ 4.4

$40.7
$ 7.3
$ 1.4
$ 1.4

$55.7
$13.0
$ 5.8
$ 5.8

Country location
SCG Ownership % (Direct)
For the year ended December 31, 1998
Net sales
Gross profit
Income from continuing operations
Net income
For the period from January 1, 1999
through August 3, 1999
Net sales
Gross profit
Income from continuing operations
Net income

Total

(10) Business Transaction
On May 11, 1999, affiliates of the Texas Pacific Group entered into
an agreement with Motorola, providing for a Recapitalization of the
Business and certain related transactions, after which affiliates of Texas
Pacific Group will own approximately 91% and Motorola will own approximately 9% of the outstanding voting stock of the Business. In addition,
as part of these transactions, Texas Pacific Group will receive 1,500
shares and Motorola will receive 590 shares of mandatorily redeemable
preferred stock of SCG Holding (“SCG Holding Preferred Stock”) and
Motorola will receive $91 million of junior subordinated notes of SCI LLC
(the “Junior Subordinated Notes”). Cash payments to Motorola will be
financed through equity investments by affiliates of Texas Pacific Group,
borrowings under senior secured bank loan facilities and the issuance of
senior subordinated notes due 2009.
In connection with the Recapitalization and related transactions, it is
anticipated that certain wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries will be established to serve as guarantors of the senior subordinated notes due 2009.
Each guarantor will jointly and severally, irrevocably and unconditionally
guarantee the obligations of the issuers under the notes. The net assets to
be contributed to these guarantor subsidiaries are expected to consist of
SCG’s equity interests in its joint ventures in China, Malaysia and Eastern
Europe, nominal interests in certain foreign subsidiaries and a nominal
amount of cash. The joint ventures and foreign subsidiaries themselves
are not expected to be guarantors of the notes. The generated related
earnings to be contributed to the guarantor subsidiaries approximated
$2.4 million for the period from January 1, 1999 through August 3, 1999
and $5.7 million for the year ended December 31, 1998.
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